2014-2015



DISTRICT STUDENT HANDBOOK

P.O. Box 51810 303 Lovers Lane Bowling Green KY 42102-6810 (270) 781-5150

Mr. Rob Clayton, Superintendent Approved July 17, 2014

Table of Contents

Ability Grouping (WCBE 08.122)	9
Absences and Excuses (WCBE 09.123)	28
Access to Electronic Media (WCBE 08.2323)	15
Administrative Regulations	3
Admissions & Attendance (WCBE 09.12)	20
Alternative Credit Options (WCBE 08.1131)	8
Alternative Education (WCBE 09.4341)	48
Assaults & Threats of Violence (WCBE 09.425)	43
Assessment of Student Progress (WCBE 02.441)	3
Athletics (WCBE 09.31)	36
Attendance Requirements (WCBE 09.122)	27
Automobile Use (WCBE 09.223)	35
Bicycle Use (WCBE 09.222)	35
Bullying/Hazing (WCBE 09.422)	40
Care of School and Personal Property (WCBE 09.421)	40
Conduct on Bus (WCBE 06.34)	4
Contagious Diseases & Parasites (WCBE 09.213)	34
Criminal Violations/Student Discipline Code (WCBE 09.438)	51
Curriculum & Instruction (WCBE 08.2321)	14
Detention (WCBE 09.432)	47
Dismissal from School (WCBE 09.1231)	29
Disrupting the Educational Process (WCBE 09.426)	44
Driver's License Revocation (WCBE 09.4294)	46
Due Process (WCBE 09.431)	47
Early Graduation (WCBE 08.1132)	9
Eligibility (Athletics) (WCBE 09.313)	37
Emergency Closings (WCBE 08.33)	18
Emergency Medical Treatment (WCBE 09.224)	35
Entrance Age (WCBE 09.121)	22
Equal Educational Opportunities (WCBE 09.13)	30
Expulsion (WCBE 09.435)	48
Extended School/Supplemental Educational Services (WCBE 08.133)	11
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act/Notification of FERPA Rights (WCBE 09.14)	31
Fund-Raising Activities (WCBE 09.33)	38
Gifted & Talented Education (WCBE 08.132)	10
Grading (WCBE 08.221)	13
Graduation Requirements (WCBE 08.113)	5
Guidance (WCBE 08.14)	12
Harassment/Discrimination (WCBE 09.42811)	45
Health Care Examination (WCBE 09.211)	33
Health Requirements & Services (WCBE 09.21)	33
Homework (WCBE 08.211)	12
Instructional Resources (WCBE 08.232)	14
Insurance (Athletics) (WCBE 09.312)	37
Legal Authority of the Warren County Public Schools Board of Education	1
Mission Statement	<u>'</u> 1
Part-Time Students (WCBE 09.1221)	28
Persons Over Compulsory Attendance Age (WCBE 09.1223)	28
Pledge of Allegiance (WCBE 08.1351)	11
Police Officers in the School (WCBE 09.4361)	51
Preface	1
Frence	1

Pregnant & Married Students (WCBE 09.41)	40
Preschool Education (WCBE 08.1114)	5
Promotion & Retention (WCBE 08.22)	12
Review of Instructional Materials (WCBE 08.2322)	15
Rights & Responsibilities	1
Safety (Athletics) (WCBE 09.311)	37
School of Residence (WCBE 09.11)	18
School-Related Student Trips (WCBE 09.36)	39
Search & Seizure (WCBE 09.436)	50
Selection of Students (WCBE 09.323)	38
Social Events (WCBE 09.35)	38
Student Activities (WCBE 09.3)	36
Student Behavior (WCBE 09.4)	40
Student Disciplinary Processes (WCBE 09.43)	47
Student Dress and Appearance (WCBE 09.427)	45
Student Fees (WCBE 09.15)	33
Student Health and Safety (WCBE 09.22)	34
Student Insurance (WCBE 09.23)	36
Student Medication (WCBE 09.2241)	36
Student Organizations (Clubs) (WCBE 09.321)	38
Student Organizations (WCBE 09.32)	38
Student Publications (WCBE 09.34)	38
Student Welfare & Wellness (WCBE 09.2)	33
Students with Disabilities (WCBE 08.131)	9
Suspension (WCBE 09.434)	48
Telecommunications & Computing Devices (WCBE 09.4261)	44
Title I Involvement	1
Tobacco & Smoking (WCBE 09.4232)	43
Transfers & Withdrawals (WCBE 09.111)	19
Tuition (WCBE 09.124)	30
Use of Physical Restraint (WCBE 09.2212)	34
Use, Receipt, Sale, Transfer, Possession or Being Under the Influence of Alcohol, Drugs, and Other	41
Prohibited Substances (WCBE 09.423)	
Volunteers (03.6)	4
Weapons (WCBE 09.424)	43
Zero Tolerance and Structure for Responses to Student Misconduct (Procedures)	52

WARREN COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS STUDENT HANDBOOK

PREFACE

The District Student Handbook has been adopted by the Warren County Board of Education in an effort to inform students, parents, school faculty, staff, and the school community of the policies relating to students of the Warren County Public School District.

Under the Kentucky guidelines for School Based Decision Making councils, schools have authority to establish additional policies within the framework of Board established rules and regulations.

Please check with your child's school for specific rules and regulations.

LEGAL AUTHORITY of the WARREN COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Kentucky gives the Kentucky General Assembly the power by appropriate legislation to provide for an efficient system of common schools throughout the state. The Warren County Board of Education, a body politic and corporate, is empowered by authority of Kentucky Revised Statute 160.160 to do all things necessary to accomplish the purposes for which it was created.

The Warren County Board of Education discharges all duties and obligations specified by Kentucky Revised Statutes and by administrative regulations adopted by the State Board of Education. Matters not covered by these statutes and regulations are administered in accordance with the intent of the law and within the context of the highest possible ethical and professional standards.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Warren County Public Schools is to prepare our students to think independently, to learn throughout life, and to be happy, healthy, productive members of a democratic society.

RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Student Rights and Responsibilities

Students have a right to a quality education, within the resources available to the district, which meet their individual needs.

Students have a responsibility to complete assignments, participate in classroom instruction and respect the rights of others.

Teacher Rights and Responsibilities

Teachers have a right to receive respect and support from their co-workers, administrators, pupils, and parents/guardians of pupils.

Teachers have a responsibility to present educational materials and the experiences appropriate to the student's abilities in their respective classrooms.

Parent/Guardian Rights and Responsibilities

Parents/guardians have a responsibility to instill in their child a sense of responsibility and respect and a personal need for an education.

(A more complete listing of Parent/Guardian Rights and Responsibilities is on file in the Central Office.) Our district receives federal funds for Title I programs.

Title I Parent Involvement Policy — This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

This policy and the plan to implement it, have been developed jointly and in agreement with, and will be distributed to, parents of students participating in the Title I program. Parents shall be notified of the policy in an understandable and

uniform format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language that parents can understand. This policy shall be made available to the local community and updated periodically to meet the changing needs of parents and the school.

Any district with an allocation of more than \$500,000 must set aside 1% of their allocation to carry out the required parent involvement activities. At least 95% of the funds set aside for parent involvement activities must be distributed to the schools. Districts providing Title I services to private schools must reserve funds for parent involvement activities for parents of participating private school children.

Building Capacity for Involvement

In order to ensure effective parent involvement for building capacity the district must:

- Assist parents in understanding Kentucky's assessment and their child's performance.
- Provide training and materials to help parents work with their children to improve their achievement (i.e. literacy and technology training).
- Train staff with the assistance of parents on how to reach out to, communicate and work with parents as equal partners in their children's education.
- Implement and coordinate parent programs.
- Inform parents about school activities and meetings in a language they can understand.
- Coordinate and integrate parent involvement programs with Head Start, the Home Instruction Program for Preschool Youngsters, the Parent as Teachers Program, and public preschool to support parents in helping in their children's education.

The district may:

- Involve parents in the development of training for staff to improve the effectiveness of the training.
- Provide transportation and childcare to enable parents to participate in school related meetings and trainings.
- Offer meetings at a variety of times and conduct in-home conferences to encourage parent involvement.
- Adopt and implement model approaches to improve parent involvement and provide support for parent involvement as requested by parents.
- Establish a district-wide parent advisory council and involve community organizations and businesses in parent involvement activities.
- Train parents to help promote the involvement of other parents.
- Provide literacy training, if no other funds are available for training.

District Level Requirements

Annual Evaluation

An annual evaluation of the effectiveness of the district's Parent Involvement Policy and parent involvement activities must be conducted. The evaluation should determine whether:

- The academic quality of the school has improved.
- Parent participation has increased.
- Barriers exist that hinder greater participation by parents.

The evaluation may be conducted through a written survey, a telephone survey or in person. Districts must document and summarize the evaluation findings and how the information will be used to improve the parent involvement program.

District Parent Involvement Policy

A written parent involvement policy at the district level must be jointly developed, agreed upon, and distributed to parents of participating children. The district policy must be reviewed by parents and revised as needed on an annual basis. Documentation of the review must be on file in the Title I Coordinator's Office. A written district parent involvement policy must establish expectations for parent involvement and describe how the district will:

- 1. Involve parents in the joint development of the Comprehensive District Improvement Plan and in the process of school review and improvement.
- 2. Provide the coordination, technical assistance and other support necessary to assist participating Title I schools in planning and implementing effective parent involvement to improve student academic achievement and school performance.
- 3. Build the schools' and parent's capacity for more effective parent involvement.
- 4. Coordinate and integrate parent involvement strategies with Head Start, Parents as Teachers, and Home Instruction Programs for Preschool Youngsters.

- 5. Conduct an annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the Parent Involvement Policy in improving the academic quality of the schools including identifying barriers to greater participation of parents, in particular: low-socioeconomic, limited English proficiency, limited literacy, or minority parents.
- 6. Use the evaluation findings to improve the parent involvement program and revise the Parent Involvement Policy as needed.

School Level Requirements

Each Title I school must jointly develop, agree upon and distribute to parents a written parental involvement policy. All Title I participating schools must develop a school-parent compact jointly with parents, and must involve parents, in an organized, ongoing and timely way, in the planning, review, and improvement of the Title I program. Title I schools must provide parents with timely information about the Title I program; a description and explanation of the curriculum, the forms of academic assessment including a definition of proficiency; opportunities for regular meetings and to participate in decisions relating to the education of their children and the opportunity to respond to any suggestions. An annual evaluation of the effectiveness of the school's Parent Involvement Policy and parent involvement activities must be conducted.

Principal/Designated Administrator Rights and Responsibilities

Principals/Designated Administrators have a right to expect all participants in the schooling process to comply with school and Board of Education policy.

Principals/Designated Administrators have a responsibility to help create and maintain a positive school climate, which allows for respect of the rights of all participants in the schooling process.

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

Authority Over Students

Pupils of the several schools of the district are under the authority of the respective administrators and teachers therein while in school and while in school buildings, on school grounds, participating in co-curricular and extracurricular activities, and while going to and returning from school or until properly released. (KRS161.180)

Race Relations and Cultural Diversity

The Warren County Board of Education will not tolerate acts of bullying, harassment or discrimination. It will not tolerate a climate of hostility created by use of language, conduct or symbols which are commonly understood to convey hatred, contempt or prejudice due to race, color, national origin, age, religion, culture, marital status, sex, or disability.

The Warren County Board of Education shall in its policies and actions deal swiftly and with determination to discipline any offenders under its supervision.

The Warren County Board of Education is committed to promoting racial harmony among its students, staff, and community in a manner that demonstrates the value of multicultural experience.

The Warren County Board of Education and staff shall continue to provide curricular and extra-curricular programs and opportunities for all students to acquire positive attitudes toward racial, cultural, and religious diversity.

The Warren County Board of Education is dedicated to equal access to all programs and opportunities for all students to reach their full potential.

Assessment of Student Progress (WCBE 02.441)

The Warren County Public Schools shall administer all state required assessments.

Review of Assessment Data

In keeping with the school improvement planning process and timeline, the school council shall review student assessment data provided annually by the Kentucky Department of Education. After reviewing the data, the council shall adopt, modify, or revise the school's plan to assist each student in making progress toward proficiency. This process shall address achievement gaps between various groups of students as required by law. In addition, the plan shall be submitted to the Superintendent and Board for review. In a school without a council, the Principal shall complete the review and planning process with the involvement of parents, faculty, and staff.

Individual Reports

Each year, an individual student report shall be provided to parents of students in grades three through eight (3-8) in accordance with statutory requirements. Teachers and parents/guardians of each primary student shall be informed of results from reading and mathematics diagnostic assessments and prompts.

Volunteers (03.6)

Definition

Volunteers are persons who do not receive compensation for assisting in school or District programs. Volunteers are encouraged to use their time and effort to support school and District programs. The Superintendent shall develop procedures that encourage volunteers to assist in school and/or District programs and to facilitate effective communication with persons who volunteer.

Teacher education students or students enrolled in an educational institution and who participate in observations and educational activities under direct supervision of a local school teacher or administrator in a public school shall not be considered volunteers.

SUPERVISION

All volunteers shall provide assistance only under the direction and supervision of a member of the professional administrative and teaching staff.

Volunteers who assist in the District on a scheduled and/or continuing basis shall be provided with the same liability insurance coverage as a District employee and shall be provided with a written task description detailing responsibilities and expectations, as well as specific qualifications that may be required.

RECORDS CHECK

The District shall conduct, at District expense, a state criminal records check on all volunteers who have contact with students on a regularly scheduled and/or continuing basis, or who have supervisory responsibility for children at a school site or on school-sponsored trips.

Pursuant to KRS 160.380, the Superintendent/designee also may require volunteers to submit to a national criminal history background check for safety reasons. With prior approval of the Superintendent/designee, the background checks will be conducted at District expense. Otherwise, except as stated previously, the volunteer must pay for the background checks.

No volunteer shall be utilized to supervise students, or deemed to have the authority to supervise students, unless the volunteer has been designated to supervise students by the Principal and approved by the Superintendent/designee, and the volunteer has undergone the required records check.

WORK-BASED SITE SUPERVISORS

Work-based learning site supervisors are considered volunteers. Pursuant to \underline{KRS} 160.380 and \underline{KRS} 161.148, prior to being assigned to supervise a student for more than one (1) day in a work-based learning experience, the site supervisor shall have undergone a state criminal background check either as required by their employer at time of employment or within the past twelve (12) months, whichever is the more recent.

ORIENTATION

The Superintendent/designee shall develop orientation materials to be provided to all volunteers who have contact with students on a regularly scheduled or continuing basis. These materials shall include, but not be limited to, pertinent policies and safety and emergency procedures.

Conduct on Bus (WCBE 6.34)

PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBLE

The Principal shall oversee the deportment of his students who ride on the school bus and who walk to and from the school.

REPORTING OF VIOLATIONS

Bus drivers shall promptly report in writing any violation of District policy or school rules to the Principal.

DISCHARGE OF PUPILS FROM BUS

The driver is in charge of his bus, and his first responsibility shall be to the safe transportation of his passengers. In the event that one or more pupils are behaving in a threatening or violent manner or in such a way as to endanger the safety of other pupils on the bus, the driver shall stop the bus and contact the bus garage or Superintendent's designee to send someone to pick up the student or, if the behavior warrants, the driver shall call law enforcement. If calls for assistance are unsuccessful, the driver is authorized to order the offending student from the bus according to guidelines established in procedures developed by the Superintendent and if the student is in the sixth (6th) grade or

above. In the event a pupil is discharged for disciplinary reasons, the driver shall make every effort to do so near a house or open business establishment. At the first reasonable opportunity, the driver shall notify the Principal of the school where the pupil attends or the Superintendent and the student's parent or legal guardian.

WITHHOLDING OF RIDING PRIVILEGES

The Principal is authorized to withhold bus-riding privileges up to a maximum of ten (10) school days per occurrence in the case of habitual or serious conduct violations. The Principal shall notify the parents in cases where bus-riding privileges have been withheld.

The Superintendent or his designee may withhold bus-riding privileges up to the remainder of the school year.

RESTITUTION OF DAMAGES

The parents or guardians may be held responsible for restitution of any damages, beyond normal usage, inflicted by their child.

STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

Students with special needs who exhibit inappropriate conduct shall be managed in accordance with their Individual Education Plan (IEP) and/or 504 Plan and the legal obligations and standards adopted by the Board.

Preschool Education (WCBE 08.1114)

The Board shall provide a developmentally appropriate preschool education program in compliance with applicable statutes and administrative regulations.

Plans for the preschool program shall include supervision guidelines consistent with the mental and physical characteristics of preschool. Maximum group size for eligible children shall be (20) children. The staff ratio in the classroom shall consist of one (1) adult for a maximum of ten (10) children pursuant to staff qualifications established in Section 7 of this administrative regulation. Consideration shall be given to increasing the number of staff or decreasing the group size depending upon the needs of the children, including the needs of children with disabilities. An adult shall not be left alone with more than ten (10) preschool children. The local school district shall have a written policy for assistance from another adult if one (1) adult is responsible for a group of children.

Graduation Requirements (WCBE 08.113) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

In a school operating under a six or seven period day, block schedule or hybrid schedule, and in support of the student development goals set out in <u>KRS 158.6451</u> and the Kentucky Academic Expectations, students must complete a minimum of twenty-two (22) credits including demonstrated performance-based competency in technology, and all other state and local requirements in order to graduate from high school in the District.

Minimum graduation requirements include: four (4) math credits, four (4) English credits, three (3) social studies credits, one (1) health/physical education credit, one (1) visual and performing arts credit, and six (6) elective credits.

Based on local, State, and/or Council on Postsecondary Education requirements, the school council will determine which core and related classes students will need to fulfill requirements for their diploma choices. Students shall choose to earn a scholastic diploma or an academic diploma. Course selection should be based upon a student's academic and/or career goals and shall be selected from the Program of Study. Students will be guided into courses, which are consistent with their academic and/or career objectives. Prior performance, teacher recommendation, student choice and parent input will be considered when making course selections.

Requirements for grade placement for schools operating under a six or seven period day are: Sophomore (5 credits), Junior (11 credits), and Senior (16 credits). Requirements for grade placement in a hybrid or block schedule are Sophomore (6). Junior (12), and Senior (18) credits.

Students that do not meet the college readiness benchmarks for English and language arts and/or mathematics shall take a transitional course or intervention before exiting high school.

Each high school student shall complete an individual learning plan, which focuses on career exploration and related postsecondary education and training needs and has a minimum of twenty-two (22) credits for high school graduation. Those credits shall include the content standards as provided in the Kentucky Core Academic Standards, 704 KAR 003:303. Additional standards-based learning experiences shall align to the student's individual learning plan and shall

consist of standards-based content. The required credits and demonstrated competencies shall include the following minimum requirements:

- 1. Four (4) Language Arts credits (English I, II, III, IV) to be taken each year of high school;
- 2. Three (3) Social Studies credits;
- 3. Four (4) Mathematics credits, (Algebra I, Algebra II, and Geometry required) with one mathematics course taken each year of high school to ensure readiness for postsecondary education or the workforce based on the student's individual learning plan;
- 4. Three (3) Science credits;
- 5. One-half (.5) Health credit;
- 6. One-half (.5) Physical Education credit;
- 7. One (1) History and Appreciation of Visual and Performing Arts credit, or another course which incorporates this content, or a standards-based specialized arts course based on the student's individual learning plan;
- 8. Elective credits providing academic and career interest standards-based learning experiences, including four (4) standards-based learning experiences in an academic or career interest based on the student's individual learning plan; and
- 9. Demonstrated performance-based competency in technology.

In keeping with statutory requirements, the District shall accept for credit toward graduation and completion of high school course requirements an advanced placement or a high school equivalent course taken by a student in grades 5, 6, 7, or 8 if that student attains performance levels expected of high school students in the District as determined by achieving a score of "3" or higher on a College Board Advanced Placement examination or a grade of "B" or better in a high school equivalent.²

IN DISTRICT TRANSFERS

STUDENTS ENROLLED IN A DISTRICT HIGH SCHOOL WHO TRANSFER BETWEEN SCHOOLS WITHIN THE DISTRICT WILL USE THE CHART BELOW TO DETERMINE THE NUMBER OF CREDITS REQUIRED TO GRADUATE.

Coming from Six Period Day	Moving to Seven Period Day	Moving to Block/Hybrid
One year on this schedule	24 credits	26 credits
Two years on this schedule	23 credits	25 credits
Three years on this schedule	22 credits	24 credits

Coming from Seven Period Day	Moving to Six Period Day	Moving to Block/Hybrid
One year on this schedule	22 credits	26 credits
Two years on this schedule	22 credits	26 credits
Three years on this schedule	23 credits	25 credits

Coming from Block/Hybrid	Moving to Six Period Day	Moving to Seven Period Day
One year on this schedule	22 credits	24 credits
Two years on this schedule	24 credits	26 credits
Three years on this schedule	26 credits	26 credits

Students in a District alternative school must complete the number of credits required by the sending school or the minimum of twenty-two (22) required by the Kentucky Department of Education.

PERFORMANCE BASED CREDIT

In addition to Carnegie units, students may earn credit toward high school graduation through the District's standards-based, performance-based credit system that complies with requirements of Kentucky Administrative Regulation. Procedures for developing and amending the system shall address the following:

1. Conditions under which high school credit will be granted under the system that allow students to demonstrate proficiency and earn credit for learning acquired outside the normal classroom setting, outside of school, or in prior learning;

PERFORMANCE-BASED CREDIT MAY BE EARNED WHILE THE STUDENT IS STILL "IN SCHOOL," BUT THE INSTRUCTIONAL SETTING WILL LOOK DIFFERENT FROM A TRADITIONAL "SEAT TIME" ENVIRONMENT.

2. Performance descriptors and their linkages to State content standards and academic expectations;

At the high school level, performance descriptors and evaluation procedures shall be established to determine if the content and performance standards have been met.

- 3. Assessments and the extent to which state-mandated assessments will be used;
- 4. An objective grading and reporting process; and
- 5. Criteria to promote and support school and community learning experiences, such as internships and cooperative learning, in support of a student's individual learning plan. Such experiences shall be supervised by qualified instructors and aligned with State and District content and performance standards.

Students may receive credit toward graduation requirements by successfully completing performance-based credits in accordance with the following guidelines:

- 1. Students may earn performance-based credit:
 - a. as credit recovery (to complete the eight (8) semester high school course of study);
 - b. if the student is taking a performance-based course for acceleration purposes; or
 - c. if the student is taking a course designated as "performance-based".
- 2. In addition to 1 (a), (b), or (c) above, students taking performance-based courses must be enrolled in the District's Lighthouse Academy High School, Greenwood High School, South Warren High School, Warren Central High School, Warren East High School, or any of their respective feeder schools.

Any District school choosing to participate in a performance-based credit system will develop performance descriptors and assessments for measuring student progress. Participating schools will determine in which content areas students may earn credits.

The District Student Handbook and each high school student handbook shall include complete details concerning specific graduation requirements.

OTHER PROVISIONS

The Board may award a diploma to a student posthumously indicating graduation with the class with which the student was expected to graduate.

Consistent with the District's graduation practices for all students, an alternative high school diploma shall be awarded to students with disabilities in compliance with applicable legal requirements. In addition, former students may submit to the Superintendent a request that the District provide them with an alternative high school diploma to replace the certificate of attainment they received at time of graduation from the District.³

Beginning with the 2014-2015 school year, students who complete an early graduation high school program and meet all applicable legal requirements shall be awarded an Early Graduation Scholarship Certificate. Students planning to complete an early graduation program shall notify the Principal of their intent prior to the beginning of grade nine (9) or as soon thereafter as the intent is known.⁴

Upon recommendation of the Assistant Superintendent for Instructional Services and approval of the Board, the Warren County Public Schools will issue a District diploma to students meeting all state and District graduation requirements but not being enrolled in a District high school at the date of graduation and/or not having been enrolled in a District high school either the first or second semester of the school year.

Students enrolled in a Warren County Public High School before the 1999-2000 school year who do not finish high school on time may receive a diploma by meeting state-mandated requirements at the time of graduation.

Diplomas for Veterans

In keeping with statute and regulation, the Board shall award an authentic high school diploma to an honorably discharged veteran who did not complete high school prior to being inducted into the United States Armed Forces during World War II, the Korean conflict, or the Vietnam War.1

Alternative Credit Options (WCBE 08.1131)

In addition to regular classroom-based instruction, students may earn credit through the following means.

CREDIT RECOVERY COURSES

High school students enrolled in an A1 school may earn, through credit recovery courses, academic credit to be applied toward graduation requirements in accordance with the following quidelines:

- 1. Each unit requires written approval of the Principal to be applied toward graduation requirements
- 2. Credit may be earned only to make up failed subjects in order to complete the eight (8) semester high school course of study. The Principal/designee may consider other special circumstances;
- 3. Only approved courses and curricular programs offered by the high school will be accepted; and
- 4. An official record of the final grade must be recorded on the student transcript.

Unless otherwise recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the Board, student or their parents/guardians shall be responsible for all related expenses including tuition and textbooks.

ONLINE COURSES

Students may earn units of academic credit to be applied toward graduation requirements by completing online courses offered through agencies approved by the Board. Credit from online courses may be earned under one of the following circumstances:

- 1. The course is not currently offered at the student's high school;
- 2. The course is offered at the high school, but the student will not be able to take it due to an unavoidable scheduling conflict that would keep the student from meeting graduation requirements;
- 3. The Principal, with agreement from the student's teachers and parents/guardians, determines the student requires a differentiated or accelerated learning environment pursuant to the following guidelines:
 - a. The express approval of the Principal/designee shall be obtained before a student enrolls in a virtual course;
 - b. The school must receive an official record of the final grade before credit toward graduation will be recognized; and
 - c. Students taking such courses must be enrolled in the District.

The District shall recognize only those online courses that meet the international standards for online teachers, courses, and programs that have been adopted by the Kentucky Department of Education.

VIRTUAL ONLINE COURSES (CONTINUED)

As determined by school/council policy, students applying for permission to take an online course shall complete prerequisites and provide teacher/counselor recommendations to confirm the student possesses the maturity level needed to function effectively in an online learning environment. Online courses may be subject to review by the Superintendent/designee for conformance with Kentucky Core Academic Standards and District graduation requirements.

Provided online courses are part of the student's regular school day coursework and within budgetary parameters, the tuition fee and other costs for an online course shall be borne by the District for students enrolled full-time from funds that have been allocated to the school. The Superintendent shall determine, within the budget adopted by the Board, whether additional funding shall be granted, based on supporting data provided by the Principal.

Textbooks will be provided by the school.

COLLEGE CREDIT/DUAL CREDIT

To differentiate/accelerate the curriculum to meet the needs of students, the District shall recognize courses from post-secondary education institutions. Students will receive one (1) high school credit for every three (3) semester hours of college work. Grades will be calculated in non-weighted form for class rank and GPA and included in the student's transcript. Failure to complete the course shall be recorded. Credit may be earned in accordance with the following requirements:

- 1. The student must present documentation supporting enrollment in the post-secondary institution;
- 2. The course is not offered at the high school;
- The course is offered at the high school, but the student will not be able to take it due to an unavoidable scheduling conflict:
- The high school must receive an official record of the final grade before credit toward graduation will be recognized;
 and
- 5. Students taking such courses must be enrolled in the District.
- 6. All college courses taken will be listed on the student transcript at the high school level for dual credit purposes.
- 7. The building Principal may make exceptions to these requirements as extenuating circumstances arise: the exceptions shall be made only with prior approval from the Principal.

Students shall be responsible for all related costs and transportation.

EARLY GRADUATION (WCBE 08.1132) — THIS POLICY IS BEING REVIEWED AND/OR REVISED BY THE WCPS BOARD OF EDUCATION

Beginning with the 2014-2015 school year, students who complete an early high school graduation program and meet all applicable legal requirements shall be awarded an Early Graduation Scholarship Certificate. Students planning to complete an early graduation program shall notify the Principal of their intent prior to the beginning of grade nine (9) or as soon thereafter as the intent is known.

Otherwise, a student may graduate early on recommendation of the Superintendent and approval of the Board.

REQUESTS

For requests not related to the early high school graduation program, unless otherwise approved by the Superintendent/designee, requests for early graduation shall be presented in writing to the Principal within the first four (4) weeks of the student's final semester.

Requests for early graduation must meet the following requirements:

- All credits and other graduation requirements as specified in the District's Student Handbook including, but not limited to, required portfolios, must be satisfactorily completed;
- All school property must be returned in satisfactory condition; and
- All paperwork must be properly prepared and filed for graduation.

Ability Grouping (WCBE 08.122)

PLAN

The grouping of students for instruction should coincide with sound judgment and educational practice and shall be free from discrimination on the basis of sex, race, religion, or national origin. Grouping should be done to enhance the quality and appropriateness of instruction. Grouping should be flexible to meet student needs. Data on which to base grouping shall be drawn from at least two of the following:

- a. Teacher judgment,
- b. Performance on standardized tests,
- c. Performance on a skills continuum,
- d. Student achievement data.

Students With Disabilities (WCBE 08.131)

LEGAL OBLIGATIONS

The Board shall operate programs for students with disabilities in accordance with the legal obligations contained in the special education and section 504 procedures relating to such programs.

In situations involving students with disabilities, the Board shall determine whether to file for due process hearings, or appeals therefrom, on behalf of the District, except in the following situations:

The Superintendent/designee is authorized to request due process hearings and to file for extensions and appeals therefrom, and to request injunctive relief, due to substantial likelihood of harm/danger/likelihood of injury by or of a student. The Superintendent/designee is authorized to file for mediation on behalf of the Board and to file appeals from the Kentucky Department of Education Special Education Complaint decisions on behalf of the Board.

ASSESSMENT

District special education programs and related services shall meet all requirements established by governance authorities.

(See the above referenced District procedure information for students with disabilities.)

Gifted & Talented Education (WCBE 08.132)

DISTRICT PROVIDES

The District shall formally identify students in grades four through twelve (4-12) for participation in the District's Gifted and Talented program. Students in grades K-3 who display high potential for gifted and/or talented characteristics shall be selected through an informal process, be placed in a talent pool and receive services that allow continuous progress.

In compliance with applicable statutes and administrative regulations, the District shall provide appropriate multiple service options in an environment that addresses the abilities, interests and needs of students eligible for services in one (1) or more of the following categories: general intellectual aptitude; specific academic aptitude; creative or divergent thinking; psychosocial or leadership skills; and visual or performing arts.

The definitions specified in <u>704 KAR 003:285</u> shall be used in the operation of the District's programs for gifted and talented students.

IDENTIFICATION/DIAGNOSIS AND ELIGIBILITY

In compliance with 704 KAR 003:285, the Superintendent/designee shall develop strategies to address identification and diagnosis of the strengths, behaviors and talents of these students. Determination of eligibility for gifted and talented services shall be based on the student's individual needs, interests and abilities. Consideration shall be given to contributing factors such as environmental and cultural factors, economic disadvantage or underachievement, racial or ethnic minority, underachievement, membership or identified disability as defined in KRS 157.200.

The District's plan for identifying gifted and talented students shall:

- 1. Employ a multi-faceted approach and utilize on-going and long-term assessment;
- 2. Be based on a variety of valid and reliable measures to include both informal and formal techniques and other data specific to each category of giftedness, consistent with standards established by Kentucky Administrative Regulation;
- 3. Screen students for all areas of giftedness as defined by KRS 157.200.

Based on data gathered by designated school personnel (e.g. Counselor, Gifted/talented teacher, regular classroom teacher), a District selection/placement committee appointed by the Superintendent shall determine those students who are eligible for gifted education services and the level of services to be provided. This committee shall meet in October and February.

Prior to selection or formal identification and placement of a student, the District shall obtain parental or guardian permission before administering an individual test to the student given as a follow-up to a test routinely administered to all students and used in formal identification. If it is determined that their child is eligible for gifted education services, parents/guardians also shall be notified of the services. The individualized Gifted Student Service Plan shall be developed and reviewed with parents/guardians at least once each semester. Parents/guardians shall receive a copy of the procedures to be followed should they wish to appeal the appropriateness of services.

SERVICES

Gifted and talented students shall be provided with a Gifted Student Service Plan (GSSP) that meets requirements set out in administrative regulation.

Each school shall adjust its curriculum to meet the needs of gifted and talented students. Gifted and talented students shall be served in a manner that:

- 1. Extends learning beyond the standard curriculum;
- 2. Provides flexible grouping and differentiated curriculum consistent with the student's identified interests, needs and abilities; and
- 3. Facilitates a high level of learning goals.

Procedures and strategies to implement this policy shall identify the following:

- A variety of appropriate options for grouping by ability, interest and/or need,
- Multiple service options reflecting continuous progress through a logical sequence of learning,
- Means of obtaining parental input for use in determining appropriate services,
- A Gifted Student Service Plan format that provides for matching a formally identified gifted student's interests, needs, and abilities to differentiated service options, and
- A plan for reporting to parents, at least once each semester, regarding their child's progress in services included in the student's services plan.

Neither the primary program, nor any grade level shall be served by only one (1) gifted education service option.

PERSONNEL

The Superintendent shall appoint a Gifted/Talented Coordinator who shall oversee the operation of the District's Gifted and Talented program and assist schools in implementing the provisions of this policy. The Gifted/Talented Coordinator shall oversee the expenditure of funds for gifted education to ensure they are used to provide direct services to identified students.

Teachers of gifted and talented students shall meet requirements for certificate endorsement as established in Kentucky Administrative Regulation. All teachers shall be provided opportunities to receive training on identifying and working with gifted and talented students.

PROGRAM EVALUATION

The Gifted/Talented Coordinator shall coordinate the annual, on-going process of evaluating all aspects of the gifted education program and make recommendations for upgrading those areas found to be deficient.

GRIEVANCES

Students or parents who wish to file a grievance concerning or appeal the following areas may do so under the process outlined in administrative procedures:

- 1. The District's process for selecting students for talent pool services;
- 2. The District's process for formal identification of gifted and talented students; or
- 3. The appropriateness and/or adequacy of talent pool services or services addressed in a formally identified student services plan.

This policy and the procedures to implement it shall be made available for public inspection.

Extended School/Supplemental Educational Services (WCBE 08.133) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

PLAN FOR DIAGNOSING

The Superintendent/designee shall develop a plan for diagnosing and addressing student academic deficiencies by providing extended school services (ESS) and supplemental educational services (SES) as required by federal or state law.

EXTENDED SCHOOL SERVICES

The Board shall provide extended school services consistent with students' intervention or individual learning plans, requirements of 704 KAR 003:390, and local plans and procedures.

The District may provide extended school services during the regular school day when a waiver for alternative service delivery has been obtained. Extended school services offered during the summer shall be available to all eligible students residing in the District regardless of whether they attend District schools.

SUPPLEMENTAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

Eligible students shall be provided supplemental educational services as required by federal law.

The District shall post on the District/school web site(s) information about available supplemental educational services in keeping with federal regulatory requirements.

Pledge of Allegiance (WCBE 08.1351)

Student's Opportunity to Participant

Each student shall be afforded the opportunity to begin each school day with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States.

No student shall be required to participate in the Pledge against the student's or the parents' wishes.

Guidance (WCBE 08.14)

Guidance and counseling services shall be provided for students.

SERVICES

Services provided by the guidance program shall consist of educational counseling; career and personal counseling; testing, and other services requested by the Principal or Superintendent.

INDIVIDUAL LEARNING PLANS

In keeping with Kentucky Administrative Regulation, the District shall implement an advising and guidance process to support development and implementation of an individual learning plan for each student that includes career development and awareness.

CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL

All records and counseling information shall be kept in confidence.

Homework (WCBE 08.211)

STANDARDS FOR ASSIGNMENTS

Each school's SBDM Council shall establish standards for out-of-school assignments. These standards shall encompass amounts and types of reasonable homework assignments by grade level and shall be published in a format accessible to parents/guardians.

PURPOSE OF ASSIGNMENTS

Homework shall be assigned for the improvement of learning and must be related to the state-adopted standards. Curriculum-related assignments shall not be used for disciplinary purposes. Assignments should have meaning for the student, should be clear and specific, and should be of an amount and type that may be accomplished in a reasonable period of time.

Promotion and Retention (WCBE 08.22)

CERTIFICATE AND TRANSFERS

When a student in any public school completes the school's criteria for completion of eighth grade, he/she is entitled to and upon request shall be issued a certificate of completion signed by the Principal. The certificate shall entitle the student to admission into any public high school. Any promotions or credits earned in attendance in any approved public school are valid in any other public school. In case a student transfers from the school of one district to the school of another district, he may not be assigned to a lower grade or course until the student has demonstrated that he is not suited for the work in the grade or course to which he has been promoted.

Students who transfer from a non-accredited school may be required to take tests from the previous grade to determine grade placement or course credit.

A student who has completed the requirements established by the State Department of Education for a vocational program shall receive a vocational certificate of completion specifying the areas of competence.

DIPLOMAS

Upon successful completion of all state and Board requirements, the student shall receive a diploma indicating graduation from high school.

PROMOTION/RETENTION

Each school shall determine criteria for student progress through the school's program. The criteria shall reflect mastery of state-required capacities and be aligned with the Kentucky State Board of Education requirements.

A student may advance through grade levels K-12 without regard to age if the District determines that he/she has acquired the academic and social skills required and that advancement would be in his/her best educational interest.

Promotions in elementary, middle, and high schools shall be made by the recommendation of the Principal.

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

In cases, which involve students with disabilities, the procedures mandated by federal and state law for students with disabilities shall be followed.

WORKING PORTFOLIOS

Each building Principal and/or his/her designee shall devise a plan for insuring that all students develop a writing/working portfolio. This shall include students in all grades. The portfolio is to be transferred with the student as he/she progresses to the next level and/or grade. The Principal and/or his/her designee shall monitor the working folders of transferring students.

In the development of the writing/working portfolio, each school shall develop a timeline for completion of the writing pieces at each level and/or grade.

REVIEW

Students not meeting the standard for promotion shall be subject to a Retention Review. The Retention Review shall be conducted by the Principal and shall include, but not be limited to: a conference with the student's parents, and a review of teacher's recommendations, pertinent data, from the student's cumulative folder, records of in-class interventions, and results of remediation. At the conclusion of the review, the Principal shall make a determination of promotion or retention. Such determination may be subject to further review by the Superintendent.

Grading (WCBE 08.221) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

ACHIEVEMENT

Teachers shall maintain detailed, systematic records of the achievement of each student in the state-mandated student management system on a schedule determined by the school principal.

GRADE REPORTS

Grade reports shall be issued every nine (9) weeks for elementary, middle and high school students. Mid-term reports will be sent to parent's midway through the grading period for grades four through high school (4-12).

PRIMARY ASSESSMENT

Each primary teacher shall provide parents with a standards-based progress report. The following continuum to reflect the continuous progress of each child shall be used for primary school students:

Excellent (E) — Satisfactory (S) — Progressing (P) — Not Assessed at This Time (N)

Grading Scale

The following standards shall be adhered to for grades four through twelve (4-12):

Α	90-100	F	Below 60
В	80-89	-	Incomplete
C	70-79	E	Effort (For LEP students proficiency Level 1
D	60-69		and Level 2 only)

Grades earned on end-of-course exams required for high school courses designated by Kentucky Administration Regulation shall count as ten percent (10%) of a student's final grade in a course.

An incomplete (I) grade must be changed to a passing or failing grade within the first ten (10) days of the next grading period. Make-up work is the complete responsibility of the student.

A percentage grade shall be included in the student's grade report in addition to the letter grade.

Optional grades of E for excellent, S for satisfactory, and U for unsatisfactory may be used in P.E., art, music, etc. at the middle school level. In grades K-3, a separate progress report will be sent home to parents at the end of each nineweek grading period.

A middle school student may be considered for retention if s/he fails three (3) subjects with at least two (2) of said subjects being from required course areas. A student may be required to repeat a subject without being retained for the complete grade.

DISCIPLINARY ACTION

A student's grade shall not be lowered as a disciplinary action.

PARENT CONFERENCES

Parent/teacher conferences may be scheduled when requested by the parent or teacher.

Instructional Resources (WCBE 08.232) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

ALLOCATION METHOD

Within budgetary limits, schools or school councils shall establish an equitable method of allocating funds to purchase instructional resources.

FINANCIAL REPORT

A financial report on allocations to and expenditures for instructional resources shall be prepared annually by the Board and shall be a public record.

Each school may carry forward to the next fiscal year any part of the instructional resource allocation distributed to the school that has not been spent or committed in the current fiscal year.

INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCE FUND — THIS POLICY IS BEING REVIEWD AND REVISED BY THE WCPS BOARD OF EDUCATION

Schools with any grade from P-8 may purchase instructional resources using State funds in accordance with $\underline{704~\text{KAR}}$ 003:455.

Each school allocated instructional resource funds shall complete an annual plan to identify purchases following quidelines of the Kentucky Board of Education.

The annual plan shall be approved by the Board and by the School Council in SBDM schools.

All plans shall be approved by the local Board as to sufficiency of funding to support the requested purchases.

Any purchase exceeding the funds allocated shall be paid from other Council funds in SBDM schools.

FEES

If the Board authorizes instructional fees or costs for students in grades nine through twelve (9-12), the Board shall establish those fees annually.

Instructional resources shall be made available to all students. No student shall be denied full participation in any educational program due to an inability to pay for, or rent, all necessary instructional resources.

Fee waivers shall be provided as required by applicable statutes and regulations.

RESPONSIBILITY

Students or parents shall compensate the District for instructional resources that are lost, damaged, or destroyed while in the student's possession.

SECTARIAN TEXTS

No book or other publication (written or digital) of a sectarian, infidel, or immoral character or one that reflects on any religious denomination shall be used or distributed in any school.

Curriculum and Instruction (WCBE 08.2321)

Copyrighted Materials

The use of copyrighted material for educational purposes, by school personnel, shall be within the generally accepted uses delineated by applicable law. The Superintendent shall develop procedures for informing appropriate personnel of the fair use of copyrighted material for educational purposes.

Electronic Materials

All employees shall use electronic materials only in accordance with the license agreement under which the electronic materials were purchased or otherwise procured. Electronic materials are defined as computer software, databases, video tapes, compact and laser disks, electronic textbooks, Internet based resources or any other copyrighted material distributed in electronic form.

Any duplication of copyrighted electronic materials, except for backup and archival purposes, is a violation of the law, unless the license agreement explicitly grants duplication rights. The archival copy is not to be used on a second computer at the same time the original is in use. In addition, illegal copies of copyrighted software shall not be used on Board equipment.

Through appropriate activities, the Director of Technology shall inform all employees of their compliance responsibilities with electronic materials licensing agreements and of the penalties for violating these agreements. Employees shall be required to sign an agreement signifying that they have read and will abide by the Acceptable Use Policy (Section 08.2323).

The Superintendent or designee shall sign all District software license agreements. Each school using licensed software shall have on file a copy of the executed agreement, the original disk or the original documentation.

Review of Instructional Materials (WCBE 08.2322)

Request

The review of instructional materials, including textbooks, supplementary materials, electronic resources and library books, on the basis of citizen concerns will be conducted in response to a properly filed written request under procedures developed by the Superintendent. In schools operating under SBDM, these procedures for review shall include school council consideration of the written concerns regarding instructional materials. Forms for such requests may be obtained from the school and will be made available to any resident of the District at the Superintendent's office. The request shall include a written statement of reason for objection and a statement of the desired action regarding the material under consideration. Upon submission of the completed request to the Superintendent's office, a school committee shall be appointed.

Employees receiving a written request for review of instructional materials shall notify the Principal of the complaint, who shall then notify the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall notify the Board of all complaints filed and the council's response.

PRINCIPAL'S COMMITTEE

The Principal shall appoint a review committee, which shall consist of the following people: the Principal, media librarian, one (1) teacher who teaches the subject area or grade level in which the instructional material is used, and the supervisor of librarians.

Within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the prescribed form by the Superintendent's office, the committee shall review the instructional material and prepare a written response to the person who signed the request.

Unless the citizen files a written appeal to the Superintendent within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the committee's response, the recommendations of the Principal's Committee shall be followed.

SUPERINTENDENT'S COMMITTEE

In the event of the citizen's written appeal, the Superintendent shall appoint a review committee which shall consist of the following people: one (1) administrator, one (1) supervisor at the appropriate grade level, and (1) one media librarian. No person shall serve as a member on both the Principal's and Superintendent's committee relating to the same review request.

The Superintendent's Committee shall review the citizen's request, the report of the Principal's Committee, and the instructional material in question; ask for further information, if necessary, and prepare a written report of its findings and recommendations to the Superintendent within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the citizen's appeal.

Unless the citizen files a written appeal to the Board within ten (10) calendar days of the receipt of the Superintendent's Committee's response, the recommendations of the Committee shall be followed.

In schools operating under SBDM, the review process shall be determined by council policy.

APPEAL TO THE BOARD

In the event of the citizen's written appeal, the Board shall review the instructional material in question and both the Principal's and Superintendent's Committees' reports.

The Board shall issue a written decision within sixty (60) calendar days after receipt of the citizen's appeal. The Board's decision shall be considered final.

Challenged books and/or materials shall be withdrawn from the school only at the direction of the Board upon the conclusion of the above steps.

Access to Electronic Media (WCBE 08.2323) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

(Acceptable Use Policy)

The Board supports reasonable access to various information formats for students, employees and the community and believes it is incumbent upon users to utilize this privilege in an appropriate and responsible manner as required by this policy and related procedures, which apply to all parties who use District technology.

SAFETY PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES

The Superintendent shall develop and implement appropriate procedures to provide guidance for access to electronic media. Guidelines shall address teacher supervision of student computer use, ethical use of electronic media (including, but not limited to, the Internet, e-mail, and other District technological resources), and issues of privacy versus administrative review of electronic files and communications. In addition, guidelines shall prohibit utilization of networks for prohibited or illegal activities, the intentional spreading of embedded messages, or the use of other programs with the potential of damaging or destroying programs or data.

Students shall be provided instruction about appropriate online behavior, including interacting with other individuals on social networking sites and in chat rooms and cyber bullying awareness and response.

Internet safety measures, which shall apply to all District-owned devices with Internet access or personal devices that are permitted to access the District's network, shall be implemented that effectively address the following:

- Controlling access by minors to inappropriate matter on the Internet and World Wide Web;
- Safety and security of minors when they are using electronic mail, chat rooms, and other forms of direct electronic communications;
- Preventing unauthorized access, including "hacking' and other unlawful activities by minors online;
- Unauthorized disclosure, use and dissemination of personal information regarding minors; and
- Restricting minor's access to materials harmful to them.

A technology protection measure may be disabled by the Board's designee during the use by an adult to enable access for bona fide research or other lawful purpose. The District shall provide reasonable public notice of, and at least one (1) public hearing or meeting to address and communicate its initial Internet safety measures.

Specific expectations for appropriate use of electronic resources shall be reflected in the District's code of acceptable behavior and discipline including appropriate orientation for staff and students.

PERMISSION/AGREEMENT FORM

Students will be granted access to District owned electronic resources upon signed agreement with the policies and procedures outlined in the District's Student Handbook. The student's parent/legal guardian (or the student who is at least 18 years old) must provide the Superintendent or designee with a written request to rescind or modify this agreement.

A written parental request shall be required prior to the student being granted independent access to electronic media involving District technological resources or the Kentucky Department of Education student's electronics mail resources.

The required permission/agreement form, which shall specify acceptable uses, rules of on-line behavior, access privileges, and penalties for policy/procedural violations, must be signed by the parent or legal guardian of minor students (those under 18 years of age) and also by the student. This document shall be kept on file as a legal, binding document. In order to modify or rescind the agreement, the student's parent/guardian (or the student who is at least 18 years old) must provide the Superintendent or designee with a written request.

This document shall be kept in the student's permanent record folder as a legal, binding document until graduation. In order to modify or rescind the agreement, the student's parent/guardian (or the student who is at least 18 years old) must provide the Superintendent or designee with a written request.

EMPLOYEE USE

Employees shall not use a code, access a file, or retrieve any stored communication unless they have been given authorization to do so. (Authorization is not required each time the electronic media is accessed in performance of one's duties.) Each employee is responsible for the security of his/her own password.

Employees are encouraged to use electronic mail and other District technology resources to promote student learning and communication with the home and education-related entities. If those resources are used, they shall be used for purposes directly related to work-related activities.

Technology-based materials, activities and communication tools shall be appropriate for and within the range of the knowledge, understanding, age and maturity of students with whom they are used.

District employees and activity sponsors may set up blogs and other social networking accounts using District resources and following District guidelines to promote communications with students, parents, and the community concerning school-related activities and for the purpose of supplementing classroom instruction.

Networking, communication and other options offering instructional benefits may be used for the purpose of supplementing classroom instruction and to promote communications with students and parents concerning school-related activities.

In order for District employees and activity sponsors to utilize a social networking site for instructional, administrative or other work-related communication purposes, they shall comply with the following:

- 1. They shall request prior permission in writing from the Superintendent/designee.
- 2. If permission is granted, staff members will set up the site following any District guidelines developed by the Superintendent or designee and school guidelines developed by the Principal or designee.
- 3. Guidelines may specify whether access to the site must be given to school/District technology staff.
- 4. If written parental consent is not otherwise granted through AUP forms provided by the District, staff shall notify parents of the site and obtain written permission for students to become "friends" prior to the students being granted access. This permission shall be kept on file at the school as determined by the Principal.
- 5. Once the site has been created, the sponsoring staff member is responsible for the following:
 - a. Monitoring and managing the site to promote safe and acceptable use; and
 - Observing confidentiality restrictions concerning release of student information under state and federal law.

Staff members are discouraged from creating personal social networking sites to which they invite students to be friends. Employees taking such action do so at their own risk.

All employees shall be subject to disciplinary action if their conduct relating to use of technology or online resources violates this policy or other applicable policy, statutory or regulatory provisions governing employee conduct. The Professional Code of Ethics for Kentucky School Certified Personnel requires certified staff to protect the health, safety, and emotional well being of students and confidentiality of student information. Conduct in violation of this Code, including, but not limited to, such conduct relating to the use of technology or online resources, must be reported to Education Professional Standards Board (EPSB) as required by law and may form the basis for disciplinary action up to and including termination.

COMMUNITY USE

On recommendation of the Superintendent/designee, the Board shall determine when and which computer equipment, software, and information access systems will be available to the community.

Upon request to the Principal/designee, community members may have access to the Internet and other electronic information sources and programs available through the District's technology system, provided they attend any required training and abide by the rules of usage established by the Superintendent/designee.

Disregard of Rules

Individuals who refuse to sign required acceptable use documents or who violate District rules governing the use of District technology shall be subject to loss or restriction of the privilege of using equipment, software, information access systems, or other computing and telecommunications technologies.

Employees and students shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination (employees) and expulsion (students) for violating this policy and acceptable use rules and regulations established by the school or District.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGES

Individuals shall reimburse the Board for repair or replacement of District property lost, stolen, damaged, or vandalized while under their care. Students or staff members who deface a District public or private web site or otherwise make unauthorized changes to a web site shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion and termination, as appropriate.

RESPONDING TO CONCERNS

School officials shall apply the same criterion of educational suitability used to review other educational resources when questions arise concerning access to specific databases or other electronic media.

AUDIT OF USE

Users with network access shall not utilize District resources to establish electronic mail accounts through third-party providers or any other nonstandard electronic mail system.

The Superintendent/designee shall establish a process to determine whether the District's education technology is being used for purposes prohibited by law or for accessing sexually explicit materials. The process shall include, but not be limited to:

- 1. Utilizing technology that meets requirements of Kentucky Administrative Regulations and that blocks or filters internet access for both minors and adults to certain visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or, with respect to computers with Internet access by minors, harmful to minors;
- 2. Maintaining and securing a usage log; and
- 3. Monitoring online activities of minors.

Retention of Records for E-Rate Participants

Following initial adoption, this policy and documentation of implementation shall be retained for at least five (5) years after the last day of service in a particular funding year.

Emergency Closings (WCBE 08.33)

When, in the judgment of the Superintendent, an emergency exists, he shall close the schools or reduce the hours of the school day as appropriate in the interest of the health and safety of the pupils.

Weather-Related Schedule Changes

Warren County schools may be cancelled due to weather-related situations. Radio and television stations are notified by 6:00 A.M. and are requested to broadcast the announcement as often as possible between 6:00 and 8:00 A.M. Also, there could be a one or two hour delay in the opening of schools. Students, however, may be dropped off at their school on their regular time schedules, as there will be school staff available to supervise them.

Severe weather may also cause schools to end the school day early. A minimum of two hours notification is necessary for personnel to be available to transport students home. Central Office will notify all schools of any early closings prior to the media announcement, which will be made by the Superintendent.

Parents of preschool children should always listen carefully for any special arrangements or cancellations during severe weather

School of Residence (WCBE 09.11) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

ASSIGNED

All pupils shall be assigned by geographic attendance districts and will attend the school designated to serve their area of residence. Specific areas served by each attendance district will be marked on a map in the central administration office and posted on the District website. The Board may revise attendance districts from time to time to attain maximum utilization of school facilities. The Board may find it necessary to assign students outside their normal attendance area as set forth in this policy.

RESIDENCE DEFINED

Pupils whose parents or guardians are legal residents of the school District and have custody of the student, or as otherwise provided by state or federal law, shall be considered residents and entitled to the privileges of the District's schools. Residence is defined by primary living quarters.

If the court system has granted parents/guardians joint custody of a child then the primary residence has to be declared upon enrollment and the child has to remain in that designated school for the school term.

PROOF OF RESIDENCY

In determining residency for the purpose of this policy two (2) or more of the following items and/or documents shall be required. The School, District and/or the Board may at their discretion request additional information.

- 1. Utility bill in the name of the parent/guardian;
- 2. Lease agreement in the name of the parent/guardian;
- 3. Notarized statement of residency;
- 4. Copy of Deed for Primary Residence;
- 5. Voter Registration; or
- 6. Vehicle Registration.

Transfers and Withdrawals (WCBE 09.111) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

TEACHER TO ASCERTAIN REASON

When a pupil of compulsory school age withdraws from school, the teacher of the pupil shall ascertain the reason.1

REPORT TO DPP

The teacher shall immediately report the withdrawal and the reason for it through the Principal to the Superintendent's office (Director of Pupil Personnel).

CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

If the child has withdrawn because of residence, the next residence shall be ascertained and included in the report. The District shall notify the Kentucky Department of Education when a new student enrolls.¹

MISSING CHILDREN

The Director of Pupil Personnel shall notify the Justice Cabinet of any request for the records of a student who has been flagged as missing.¹

PERMISSION REQUIRED FOR WITHDRAWAL

Before an unmarried student between the ages of sixteen (16) and eighteen (18) may withdraw from school and terminate his/her education prior to graduation, s/he shall comply with the requirements of KRS 159.010.

A written permission for withdrawal shall be required from the parent, guardian, or other person residing in the state and having custody or charge of the student before the unmarried student may withdraw.

No written permission for withdrawal shall be required after the student's eighteenth (18th) birthday.²

Beginning with the 2015-2016 school year, students between the ages of six (6) and eighteen (18) shall enroll and be in regular attendance in the schools to which they are assigned and shall be subject to compulsory attendance.²

FOLLOW-UP BY DISTRICT PERSONNEL

Within three (3) months of the date of a student's withdrawal from school, District personnel designated by the Superintendent shall contact each student between the ages of sixteen (16) and eighteen (18) who has withdrawn from school to encourage reenrollment in a regular, alternative, or GED preparation program. If the student does not reenroll at that time, personnel shall make at least one (1) more attempt toward reenrollment of the student before the beginning of the next school year.²

STUDENT REQUESTS FOR TRANSFER

Requests for transfer to another District school must be based on physical, psychological, or educational reasons. Family hardship may also be considered in changing school assignment.

In compliance with and as set forth by federal requirements, the District shall allow students to transfer to another District school if:

- 1. Another school option exists;
- The assigned school is identified for school improvement under federal guidelines (priority for transfer will be given to the lowest achieving children from low-income families);*
- 3. The assigned school is designated by the state as being "persistently dangerous";
- 4. The student becomes a victim of a violent criminal offense, as determined by state law, while attending school.³

*Pending renewal of the Kentucky request to the U. S. Dept. of Education for flexibility, reason #2 above shall be waived through the 2014-2015 school year. If request is not renewed, then transfer reason #2 will be in force.

IN-DISTRICT TRANSFERS

Upon proper application, students who reside in one elementary, middle or high school attendance district within the District may be permitted to transfer to another District elementary, middle, or high school, provided such approval does not result in employment of additional staff, an imbalance in class size, class cap or overcrowding in the receiving school.

Each middle and high school Principal may accept additional students in a number not to exceed an established percentage of the student population living within a schools specific attendance area. This percentage shall be recommended by the Superintendent to the Board of Education. The allocation of funding for the school will not be affected by this percentage and no staff will be added. The percentage and method for calculation shall be approved by the Board on an annual basis. The Board may allow out of district students to continue in a feeder school system provided they have been enrolled in that feeder system a minimum of two (2) years and it will not count toward the percentage calculation.

Resident Student Reassignment

Should classes in a particular school exceed the allowable size limit specified by law or regulation, the Superintendent/designee is permitted to move pupils from their respective attendance areas to balance student/teacher assignments. Any such reassignment would be at the cost or service of the Board.

WHEN A FAMILY MOVES

If a family moves from one attendance area to another within the school system during the school year, the pupil may be permitted to finish the school year in the school in which he/she was last enrolled (at no cost or service by the Board). An In-District Transfer application must be completed by the parent/guardian and submitted to the Principal for approval. The following criteria apply:

- 1. The Principal gives approval;
- 2. Class size limits are not exceeded;
- 3. The student maintains a "C" grade (cumulative through the student's previous semester);
- 4. Must be in regular attendance (maximum of three (3) unexcused absences or three (3) unexcused tardies);
- 5. The student/parent provides transportation;
- 6. The student has an acceptable discipline record as determined by the Principal; and
- 7. There is no service provided or cost incurred by the Board.
- 8. Approval shall be granted with the understanding the student may be required to enroll at the school serving his/her attendance zone if, the above criteria are not met. The student may be asked to return to their school or residence at the beginning of the next grading period/term.

Non Residents

Nonresident pupils upon application and timelines may be admitted to the District's schools in accordance with Board policy and upon approval of the Superintendent. The number of nonresident pupils admitted to a school shall not exceed the number of in-district transfers granted for that school.

Admissions and Attendance (WCBE 09.12) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

RESIDENCE DEFINED

Pupils whose parents or guardians are legal residents of the school District and have custody of the student, or as otherwise provided by state or federal law, shall be considered residents and entitled to the privileges of the District's schools.

All other pupils shall be classified as nonresidents for school purposes.1

HOMELESS CHILDREN AND YOUTH

The District shall provide educational and related services to homeless children and youth in a manner that does not segregate or stigmatize students on the basis of their homeless status.

The District shall provide its schools with guidelines that detail the rights of homeless students and the responsibilities that schools have to meet their needs and eliminate barriers to school attendance. These guidelines shall emphasize the right of homeless students to:

- 1. Have equal access to all educational programs and services, including transportation, that non-homeless children enjoy;
- 2. Continue attending their school of origin for the duration of homelessness;
- 3. Attend regular public school with non-homeless students; and
- 4. Continue to receive all services for which they are eligible (i.e., special education, gifted and talented, limited English proficient).

The District shall designate an appropriate staff person to serve as liaison to homeless children and youth. The District liaison must provide public notice of the educational rights of homeless children in places where they receive services.²

IMMIGRANTS

No student shall be denied enrollment based on his/her immigration status, and documentation of immigration status shall not be required as a condition of enrollment.

Nonresidents

Nonresident pupils may be admitted to the District's schools in accordance with Board policy and upon approval of the Superintendent.³

Written nonresident pupil contract information shall be kept on file at both the attending and resident districts.

TRANSFER OF ADA

Nonresident pupils may be admitted to the District schools upon payment of tuition and/or transfer of the pupil's average daily attendance as defined under Kentucky's public school fund.⁴⁶⁵

FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENTS

The District shall only accept students from exchange programs approved by the National Association of Secondary School Principals. Foreign exchange students shall attend for only one (1) school year for the purpose of gaining language and cultural experiences. Grade level placement of students shall be determined by the Principal.

Foreign exchange students will be allowed to enroll only during the first five (5) school days of each semester. The student must submit to the receiving school thirty (30) calendar days before enrollment a videotape of the student using conversational English to show the English speaking skills of the student. The school will determine if the student's English speaking skills meet the enrollment requirements. These conditions and requirements may be modified in exceptional circumstances as determined by the Board upon recommendation of the Superintendent.

The Principal and/or his/her designee will determine the student's schedule. Students will be expected to follow the school's rules of conduct and will follow the same disciplinary code as all students.

Foreign exchange students who are not in the U.S. on a visa issued specifically for educational purposes and thus have not paid the district yearly cost of educating a student may not be considered for graduation.

NON-IMMIGRANT FOREIGN STUDENTS

Non-immigrant foreign students qualifying for F-1 immigration status or who obtain an F-1 student visa may be admitted to the District based on the following guidelines:

- 1. These students shall not be permitted to attend any publicly funded adult education program.
- These students may be permitted to attend in grades nine through twelve (9-12), but not at earlier grade levels.

- 3. As required by law, these students shall pay a tuition fee equal to the full, unsubsidized per capita cost to the District for providing education to the student for the period of attendance.
- 4. The period of attendance shall not exceed twelve (12) months.

These requirements do not apply to immigrant students residing in the District or foreign students in any other immigration status, including exchange students.

EXPELLED/CONVICTED STUDENTS

The parent, guardian, Principal, or other person or agency responsible for the student shall provide to the school prior to admission, a sworn statement or affirmation concerning any of the following that have occurred in or outside Kentucky:

- 1. If a student has been expelled from school; or
- 2. If a student has been adjudicated guilty/convicted of, homicide, assault, or an offense in violation of state law or school regulations relating to weapons, alcohol, or drugs.

Assault shall mean any physical assault, including sexual assault.

The sworn statement or affirmation shall be on a form provided by the appropriate state agency and shall be sent to the receiving school within five (5) working days of official notification that a student has requested enrollment in the new school.⁶

EXPELLED/CONVICTED STUDENTS (CONTINUED)

If a student is suspended or expelled for any reason, or faces charges that may lead to suspension or expulsion, but withdraws prior to a hearing from any public or private school in Kentucky or any other state and then moves into the District and seeks to enroll, the District shall review the details of the charges, suspension, or expulsion and determine if the student will be admitted, and if so, what conditions may be imposed upon the admission. Prior to a decision to deny admission, the District shall offer the student, parent/guardian, or other persons having legal custody or control of the student a hearing before the Board.

Entrance Age (WCBE 09.121) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

New Eligibility Requirement for Kentucky State-Funded Preschool Guidance for School Districts

What Changed?

As a result of House Bill 235, changes were made the Kentucky State-Funded Preschool Program. A new minimum age requirement for state-funded preschool students will take effect this fall, moving from October 1 to August 1. Beginning in school year 2014-15, children who are four (4) years old by August 1 are age-eligible for the state-funded preschool program. In addition, the income eligibility requirement will change from 150% of poverty in 2014-15 to 160% of poverty in 2015-16.

School Year	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19
Preschool	Age 4 on or				
	before	before	before	before	before
	8/1/2014	8/1/2014	8/1/2014	8/1/2014	8/1/2014
	Date of Birth:				
	8/2/2009-	8/2/2009-	8/2/2009-	8/2/2009-	8/2/2009-
	8/1/2010	8/1/2011	8/1/2012	8/1/2013	8/1/2014
Kindergarten	Age 5 on or	Age 4 on or			
	before	before	before	before	before
	10/1/2014	10/1/2015	10/1/2016	8/1/2017	8/1/2018
	Date of Birth:				
	10/2/2008-	10/2/2009-	10/2/2010-	10/2/2011-	8/2/2012-
	10/1/2009	10/1/2010	10/1/2011	8/1/2012*	8/1/2013*

What options are there for children turning four after August 1?

Districts should support families of non-eligible young children with existing strategies and resources, including referrals to childcare and Head Start, tuition options for preschool if space is available, and child development materials such as the Early Childhood Parent Guides.

Preschool eligibility may be determined up to four (4) months prior to start of school (704 KAR 3:410). Some districts have already started the enrollment process for the 2015-15. What about at-risk children turning four by October 1 who are enrolled four months in advance of 2014-15? Can they still attend preschool next year?

Yes, if eligibility was determined before May 1, 2014. They are eligible for 2015-15 ONLY.

The students will need to be enrolled in Kindergarten in 2015-16. Districts may not count these students toward preschool enrollment in 2015-16. All other children turning four after August 1 will not be eliqible to enroll for 2014-15 school year.

What about preschool children with disabilities?

School districts are required to provide instruction to children with disabilities based on individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA) and Kentucky special education regulations (704 KAR 1:002-1:380). The Individualized Education Program (IEP) tells what supports, services, instruction and amount of time in a regular education classroom, must be provided to a child with disabilities. Beginning in 2014-15, preschool children with disabilities who turn four between August 1 and October 1 will be eligible for preschool as three-year-old students.

What about children turning four between August 1 and October 1, 2014, will they be eligible for state-funded preschool AND kindergarten in 2015-16?

Some children will turn five between August 1 and October 1, 2015, meaning they will be eligible for state-funded preschool AND kindergarten in the 2015-16 school year. However, districts cannot simultaneously enroll children in both programs; a decision must be made to enroll in one program or the other. Decisions must be made locally, and schools should work closely with families to meet the learning needs of each child entering school. Children develop at different rates across the learning continuum, and schools must be ready to meet children where they are developmentally.

What about Head Start and school district full utilization agreements?

Each year school districts and Head Start providers agree to fully utilize Head Start funds and avoid supplanting federal funds being sued to provide services to children with sate funds. Since Head Start is required to follow the date used by school districts to determine eligibility, some partnerships may need to adjust full utilization agreement umbers based on the number of four year olds currently served with birthdates between August 1 and October 1.

What about income eligibility for preschool?

School districts must determine income eligibility of four-year-old students. Beginning in school year 2015-16, children who meet 160% of federal poverty income requirement will be eligible for preschool. School districts should update recruitment processes and materials to reflect this change, as well as enrollment applications.

School Year	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19
Preschool	150% of federal	160% of	160% of	160% of	160% of
	poverty and	federal poverty	federal poverty	federal poverty	federal poverty
	resident of district	and resident of	and resident of	and resident of	and resident of
		district	district	district	district

How will the preschool students be identified in Infinite Campus/Kentucky's Student Information System (KSIS)?

KDE is in the process of updating the data standards to detail how preschool students should be identified and tracked in Infinite Campus. Updates to requirements will be communicated with districts through KSIS alerts and notifications, KSIS newsletters, and KSIS training. These changes will be reviewed in detail during the 2014-2015 KSIS Beginning of Year (B0Y) training being scheduled this summer. There will be new procedures for enrolling preschool students based on new requirements. This will include examples and scenarios and will be posted on the School Readiness web page by June 30, 2014.

Contact Information: Bill Buchanan, School Readiness Branch Manager bill.buchanan@education.ky.gov 502-564-7056

PRESCHOOL

In accordance with appropriate state and federal legal requirements, any child who has been identified as disabled or as exceptional, and who is three (3) or four (4) years of age, or who may become five (5) years of age after August 1 of the current year, shall be eligible for a free and appropriate preschool education and related services.

Children at risk of educational failure who are four (4) by August 1 may enter preschool. All other four (4) year old children shall be served to the extent placements are available.

Primary School

A child who becomes five (5) by October 1 may enter primary school and may advance through the primary program without regard to age in accordance with <u>KRS 158.030</u>. A child who becomes six (6) by October 1 shall attend public school unless s/he qualifies for an exemption as provided by law.

The District shall establish guidelines to determine a student's level of academic and social skills when that student is being considered for advancement through the primary program. A student who is at least five (5) years of age, but less than six (6) years of age on or before October 1, may be enrolled in the second level of the primary program in keeping with the process set out in Kentucky Administrative Regulation.

Beginning with the 2017-2018 school year, the following provisions shall apply:

- A child who becomes five (5) by August 1 may enter primary school and may advance through the primary program without regard to age in accordance with KRS 158.031. A child who becomes six (6) by August 1 shall attend public school unless s/he qualifies for an exemption as provided by law.
- A child who is six (6) years of age, or who may become six (6) years of age by August 1, shall attend public school or qualify for an exemption as provided by KRS 159.030.

Petition Process

PRINCIPAL'S RESPONSIBILITY

Principals are responsible for administering the following entrance requirements related to age and health status of a student:

- *Proof of Age and Identity* Each pupil entering any elementary or secondary school for the first time shall present evidence of age by means of a birth certificate or other reliable proof of the student's identity and age. If a birth certificate is not presented, an affidavit of the inability to produce a copy of the birth certificate must be given.
- *Proof of Immunization* Upon enrollment, each pupil entering kindergarten or first grade for the first time shall present evidence of immunization by means of a doctor's certificate or a certificate from the Public Health Service.
- Preventative Health Care and Vision Examinations Within one (1) year prior to initial admission to school, each student entering kindergarten shall undergo a preventative health care examination, which shall be documented on the state-required form. A preventative health care examination may also be required for students entering pre-school.

Also upon enrollment, each student entering the first year of public school, public pre-school or Head Start must undergo a vision examination as required by applicable statute and regulation and provide the school with the required form by January 1 of the first year of enrollment. Evidence of a dental screening or examination shall be required to be submitted by January 1 of the first year that a five- and six-year-old student is enrolled in the District.

PRINCIPALS TO REPORT

Principals are to report to the Superintendent/designee the names of those children who do not present acceptable evidence of age and required immunizations and examinations.

FAILURE TO PROVIDE

Except for vision examination forms and dental examination forms as noted above, which are due by January 1 of the first year of enrollment, failure to provide the remaining required documentation within thirty (30) calendar days after enrollment may constitute reason for appropriate action.

EARLY ENTRANCE TO KINDERGARTEN PROTOCOL WARREN COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

According to Board-approved Policy 09.121 regarding "Early Entrance to Kindergarten," state law requires districts to have a process in place that allows a provision for parents of children who are not at least five (5) years old by October 1 (KRS 158.030) to petition the District for early entrance to kindergarten.

The following is the District's Early Entrance to Kindergarten Protocols:

- Any parent requesting that their child be screened for early entrance to kindergarten may do so between July 1 and September 1 of the current school year. No child may be screened prior to July 1 or after September 1.
- 2. Parents must obtain the **Petition for Early Enrollment Form** (09.121 AP.21) and complete both pages. This form must be submitted to the Supervisor of Primary Instruction at the Warren County Board of Education prior to scheduling the actual Kindergarten Readiness Screening.
 - Forms may be picked up at the Warren County Board of Education, at the prospective school of enrollment, or online at www.warrencountyschools.org
- 3. Once the Petition for Early Enrollment Form is received by the Supervisor of Primary Instruction, the District Kindergarten Readiness Screener Administrator will be contacted to arrange the date, time and location for the screening to take place.
- 4. The person bringing the child (parent, guardian or caretaker) to the screening should expect to stay thirty (30) minutes to one (1) hour for the screening. They will be asked to complete a form regarding the child's growth and development while the child is being screened. During the screening, the child will be separated from the parent or caretaker in order for the screener to be administered in the same manner as for all other incoming kindergarten students. If the school year has begun, the screening will only be scheduled during a timed of reduced disruption within the school in which the child is being screened.
- 5. In order to be considered for early enrollment, the child being screened must meet the state-approved readiness level as determined by the Brigance Kindergarten Readiness Level requirement.
- 6. Within five (5) days of the screening, the parent(s) will be notified of the results. Screening results will only be shared and discussed with the parent/quardian.
- 7. If the child's results indicate kindergarten readiness, parents will be given contact information and required documentation needed in order to complete the enrollment process. Parents may request a meeting with the Supervisor of Primary Instruction and/or the District Brigance Screener Administrator to discuss the results.
- 8. If the child's results do not indicate kindergarten readiness, the parents may request a meeting with the Supervisor of Primary Instruction and/or the District Brigance Screener Administrator to discuss the results.
- 9. A child will be screened only one (1) time and there will not be an opportunity for rescreening.

For additional questions or clarifications contact the Supervisor of Primary Instruction at the Warren County Board of Education, 303 Lovers Lane, Bowling Green, KY 42101 or by calling 270-781-5150.

PRINCIPAL'S RESPONSIBILITY

Principals are responsible for administering the following entrance requirements related to age and health status of a student:

- *Proof of Age and Identity* Each pupil entering any elementary or secondary school for the first time shall present evidence of age by means of a birth certificate or other reliable proof of the student's identity and age. If a birth certificate is not presented, an affidavit of the inability to produce a copy of the birth certificate must be given.
- *Proof of Immunization* Upon enrollment, each pupil entering kindergarten or first grade for the first time shall present evidence of immunization by means of a doctor's certificate or a certificate from the Public Health Service.
- Preventative Health Care and Vision Examinations Within one (1) year prior to initial admission to school, each student entering kindergarten shall undergo a preventative health care examination, which shall be documented on the state-required form. A preventative health care examination may also be required for students entering pre-school.

Also upon enrollment, each student entering the first year of public school, public pre-school or Head Start must undergo a vision examination as required by applicable statute and regulation and provide the school with the required form by January 1 of the first year of enrollment. Evidence of a dental screening or examination shall be required to be submitted by January 1 of the first year that a five- and six-year-old student is enrolled in the District.

PRINCIPALS TO REPORT

Principals are to report to the Superintendent/designee the names of those children who do not present acceptable evidence of age and required immunizations and examinations.

FAILURE TO PROVIDE

Except for vision examination forms and dental examination forms as noted above, which are due by January 1 of the first year of enrollment, failure to provide the remaining required documentation within thirty (30) calendar days after enrollment may constitute reason for appropriate action.

According to Board-approved Policy 09.121 regarding "Early Entrance to Kindergarten," state law requires districts to have a process in place that allows a provision for parents of children who are not at least five (5) years old by October 1 (KRS 158.030) to petition the District for early entrance to kindergarten.

The following is the District's Early Entrance to Kindergarten Protocols:

- 10. Any parent requesting that their child be screened for early entrance to kindergarten may do so between July 1 and September 1 of the current school year. No child may be screened prior to July 1 or after September 1.
- 11. Parents must obtain the **Petition for Early Enrollment Form** (09.121 AP.21) and complete both pages. This form must be submitted to the Supervisor of Primary Instruction at the Warren County Board of Education prior to scheduling the actual Kindergarten Readiness Screening.
 - Forms may be picked up at the Warren County Board of Education, at the prospective school of enrollment, or online at www.warrencountyschools.org
- 12. Once the Petition for Early Enrollment Form is received by the Supervisor of Primary Instruction, the District Kindergarten Readiness Screener Administrator will be contacted to arrange the date, time and location for the screening to take place.
- 13. The person bringing the child (parent, guardian or caretaker) to the screening should expect to stay thirty (30) minutes to one (1) hour for the screening. They will be asked to complete a form regarding the child's growth and development while the child is being screened. During the screening, the child will be separated from the parent or caretaker in order for the screener to be administered in the same manner as for all other incoming kindergarten students. If the school year has begun, the screening will only be scheduled during a timed of reduced disruption within the school in which the child is being screened.
- 14. In order to be considered for early enrollment, the child being screened must meet the state-approved readiness level as determined by the Brigance Kindergarten Readiness Level requirement.
- 15. Within five (5) days of the screening, the parent(s) will be notified of the results. Screening results will only be shared and discussed with the parent/quardian.
- 16. If the child's results indicate kindergarten readiness, parents will be given contact information and required documentation needed in order to complete the enrollment process. Parents may request a meeting with the Supervisor of Primary Instruction and/or the District Brigance Screener Administrator to discuss the results.
- 17. If the child's results do not indicate kindergarten readiness, the parents may request a meeting with the Supervisor of Primary Instruction and/or the District Brigance Screener Administrator to discuss the results.
- 18. A child will be screened only one (1) time and there will not be an opportunity for rescreening.

FOR ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS OR CLARIFICATIONS CONTACT THE SUPERVISOR OF PRIMARY INSTRUCTION AT THE WARREN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, 303 LOVERS LANE, BOWLING GREEN, KY 42101 OR BY CALLING 270-781-5150.

PROOF OF AGE

Upon enrollment for the first time in any elementary or secondary school, a student or student's parent shall provide:

- A certified copy of the student's birth certificate, or
- Other reliable proof of the student's identity and age with an affidavit explaining the inability to produce a copy of the birth certificate.

Attendance Requirements (WCBE 09.122)

COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE

All children in the district who have entered kindergarten or who are between the ages of six (6), as of October 1, and sixteen (16), except those specifically exempted by statute, shall enroll and be in regular attendance in the schools to which they are assigned.

Before an unmarried student between the ages of sixteen (16) and eighteen (18) may withdraw from school and terminate education prior to graduation, s/he shall confer with the Principal or designee, and s/he shall secure written permission from her/his parents. (See Board Policy 09.111.)

EXEMPTIONS FROM COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE

The Board shall exempt the following from compulsory attendance:

- 1. A graduate from an accredited or approved 4-year high school,
- 2. A pupil who is enrolled in a private or parochial school,
- 3. A pupil who is less than seven (7) years old and in regular attendance in a private kindergarten nursery school,
- 4. A pupil whose physical or mental condition prevents or renders inadvisable, attendance at school or application to study,
- 5. A pupil who is enrolled and in regular attendance in private, parochial, or church school programs for exceptional children, or
- 6. A pupil who is enrolled and in regular attendance in a state supported program for exceptional children.

PHYSICIAN'S STATEMENT REQUIRED

The Board, before granting an exemption, shall require a signed statement as required by law unless a student's individual education plan (IEP) specifies that placement of the child with a disability at home or in a hospital is the least restrictive environment for providing services.

EXCEPTIONS TO PRESENCE AT SCHOOL

Students must be physically present in school to be counted in attendance, except under the following conditions:

- 1. Students shall be counted in attendance when they are receiving home/hospital, institutional, or court-ordered instruction in another setting.
- 2. Participation of a pupil in 4-H activities that are regularly scheduled and under the supervision of a county extension agent or the designated 4-H club leader shall be considered school attendance.
- 3. Students may participate in co-curricular activities and be counted as being in attendance during the instructional school day, provided the Principal/designee has given prior approval to the scheduling of the activities. Approval shall be granted only when co-curricular activities and trips are instructional in nature, directly related to the instructional program, and scheduled to minimize absences from classroom instruction.
- 4. Attendance in accordance with requirements set out in Kentucky Administration Regulation.
- 5. Students having an Individual Education Plan (IEP) that requires less than full-time instructional services shall not be required to be present for a full school day.
- 6. Students who attend classes for moral instruction at the time specified and for the period fixed shall be credited with the time spent as if they had been in actual attendance in school, and the time shall be calculated as part of the actual school work required by law. Students shall not be penalized for any schoolwork missed during the specified moral instruction time.
- 7. Students participating as part of a school-sponsored interscholastic athletic team, who compete in a regional or state tournament sanctioned by the Kentucky Board of Education or KHSAA, that occurs on a regularly scheduled school day shall be counted and recorded present at school on the date or dates of the competition, for a maximum of two (2) days per student per school year. Students shall be expected to complete any assignments missed on the date or dates of the competition.

Part-Time Students (WCBE 09.1221)

Emancipated high school students or those over sixteen (16) years of age enrolled in three (3) units or less of academic credit shall be classified as part-time.

Enrollment of part-time students shall be subject to the approval of the Principal.

Persons Over Compulsory Attendance Age (WCBE 09.1223) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

PROHIBITIONS

Persons over twenty-one (21) years of age shall not be admitted to or served by the District's elementary secondary schools.

Students under age twenty-one (21) who already have graduated from an accredited or four (4) year high school shall be considered to have completed high school and shall not be permitted to enroll in the District. Students who have earned a GED shall be permitted to enroll to work toward completion of graduation requirements.

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

In cases, which involve students with disabilities, the procedures mandated by federal and state law for such students shall be followed.

Absences and Excuses (WCBE 09.123)

Students are required to attend regularly and punctually the school in which they are enrolled. Recording of absences and tardies shall be made in compliance with the requirements of 702 KAR 007:125.

TRUANCY DEFINED

Any student who has attained the age of six (6), but has not reached his/her eighteenth (18th) birthday, who has been absent from school without valid excuse for three (3) days or more, or tardy without valid excuse on three (3) days or more, is a truant.

Any student enrolled in a public school who has attained the age of eighteen (18) years, but has not reached his/her twenty-first (21st) birthday, who has been absent from school without valid excuse for three (3) or more days, or tardy without valid excuse on three (3) or more days, is a truant.

Any student who has been reported as a truant two (2) or more times is a habitual truant.

For the purposes of establishing a student's status as a truant, a student's attendance record is cumulative for an entire school year. When students transfer from one Kentucky district to another, attendance information from the previous district shall become part of their official attendance record for that school year.

EXCUSED ABSENCE OR TARDINESS

An excused absence or tardiness is one for which work may be made up and which has been verified by the Principal or designee.

Educational Enhancement Opportunity (EHO)

A student shall be granted an excused absence for up to ten (10) school days to pursue an educational enhancement opportunity determined by the Principal to be of significant educational value. This opportunity may include, but not be limited to, participation in an educational foreign exchange program or an intensive instructional, experiential, or performance program in one (1) of the core curriculum subjects of English, science, mathematics, social studies, foreign language, and the arts.

Unless the principal determines that extenuating circumstances exist, requests for date(s) falling within state or district testing periods shall not be granted.

The Principal's determination may be appealed to the Superintendent/designee whose decision may then be appealed to the Board under its grievance policy and procedures.

Students receiving an excused absence under this section shall have the opportunity to make up school work missed and shall not have their class grades adversely affected for lack of class attendance or class participation due to the excused absence.

UNEXCUSED ABSENCES

All other absences other than those defined in this policy as excused shall be considered unexcused. No make up work, including tests, shall be allowed for unexcused absences.

EXCUSED ABSENCES/GRADES K-8

Excused absences shall include:

- 1. Death or severe illness in the student's immediate family;
- 2. Illness of the student;
- 3. Appearance in court of the student pursuant to a warrant, subpoena, or citation;
- 4. Religious holidays and practices;
- 5. Participation in school-related activities approved by the Principal or designee;
- 6. One (1) day prior to departure of parent/guardian called to active military duty;
- 7. One (1) day upon the return of parent/guardian from active military duty,
- 8. Visitation for up to ten (10) days with the student's parent, de facto custodian, or person with legal custody who, while on active military duty stationed outside of the country, is granted rest and recuperation leave,
- 9. Other valid reasons as determined by the Principal, including trips qualifying as educational enhancement opportunities.

Unless the Principal determines that extenuating circumstances exist, requests for date(s) falling within State or District testing periods shall not be granted. The Principal's determination may be appealed to the Superintendent/designee whose decision may then be appealed to the Board under its grievance policy and procedures.

Students receiving an excused absence under this section shall have the opportunity to make up school work missed and shall not have their class grades adversely affected for lack of class

Excused Absences Grades 9-12

Excused absences shall include:

- 1. Death or severe illness in the student's immediate family;
- 2. Illness of the student:
- 3. Court appearance of the student pursuant to a warrant, subpoena, or citation;
- 4. Testing for driver's license if accompanied by parent or quardian and upon approval of Principal or designee;
- 5. Religious holidays and practices;
- 6. Participation in school-related activities approved by the Principal or designee;
- 7. Documented military leave;
- 8. One (1) day prior to departure of parent/guardian called to active military duty;
- 9. One (1) day upon the return of parent/quardian from active military duty,
- 10. Visitation for up to ten (10) days with the student's parent, de facto custodian, or person with legal custody who, while on active military duty stationed outside of the country, is granted rest and recuperation leave,
- 11. Other valid reasons as determined by the Principal or designee, trips qualifying as educational enhancement opportunities.

Dismissal from School (WCBE 09.1231)

RELEASE OF STUDENTS

At any time students are dismissed from school, they shall be released according to the written instructions provided by the custodial parent/guardian. The instructions, which shall be requested at the time the student registers/enrolls for the school year, shall include the student's regular mode of transportation at the end of the day and a list of persons, in addition to the custodial parent/guardian, who are authorized to pick up the child from school. Any deviation from the authorized release process must be approved by the Principal/designee prior to the student departing school in another manner.

It shall be the responsibility of the custodial parent/guardian to notify the school in writing if release instructions are to be revised. If written instructions are not provided to the school, the student shall only be released to ride home on the assigned bus or with the custodial parent/guardian.

Any student who leaves the school grounds at any time without proper authorization shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

RELEASE PROCESS

If the student is to be picked up early, the custodial parent/guardian or designee shall report to the Principal's office and sign for the student's release.

Each school shall maintain a daily entry and exit log of students signing in late or signing out early and shall require proof of identification from individuals (visual identification by an employee, driver's license, picture identification, etc.) to assure that they are authorized to pick up the student.

Those students who are not on record as being under the care or control of a parent/guardian may sign for their own dismissal.

EXCEPTIONS

A student may be released to a person with lawful authority to take custody of the student, e.g., a police officer with a warrant. In such case, the student's parent shall be notified at the earliest opportunity.

In addition, the Board authorizes emergency release of students for illness or other bona fide reasons, as determined by the Principal.

Tuition (WCBE 09.124)

FEE TO BE CHARGED

The Board may charge a fee, according to a schedule adopted by the Board, for each student attending its schools whose parent is not a bona fide resident of the district.

Refunds Tuition

Refunds of tuition shall be made on a pro rata basis of time in membership.

Equal Educational Opportunities (WCBE 09.13)

DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED

No pupil shall be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, national or ethnic origin, sex, genetic information, religion, political affiliation, age or disability.

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The District shall provide a free, appropriate public education to each qualified student with a disability, as defined by law, within its jurisdiction.

The District shall operate its programs in accordance with the procedures addressing requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

Parents of students who have a temporary or permanent disability may request the District supervisor to provide appropriate accommodations necessary for them to participate in instructional and extracurricular activities, as required by law. Students who are at least eighteen (18) years of age may submit their own requests.

RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES

The District shall observe the rights of students to voluntarily engage in religious activities or express religious viewpoints while at school, as established by the United States Constitution and law, provided they do not:

- 1. Infringe on the rights of the school to:
 - a. Maintain order and discipline;
 - b. Prevent disruption of the educational process; and
 - c. Determine education curriculum;
- 2. Harass other persons or coerce other persons to participate in the activity; or
- 3. Otherwise infringe on the rights of other persons.

Student complaints concerning possible violations of their religious rights shall be addressed in keeping with legal requirements. Their complaints shall be directed to the Principal, who shall investigate and take appropriate action within thirty (30) days of receipt of the written notification.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act/Notification of FERPA Rights (WCBE 09.14) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

The following rules and procedures shall be complied with relative to disclosure of student records:

- The District shall annually notify parents of students currently in attendance, or eligible student currently
 in attendance of their rights under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). The
 notification also shall be furnished to parents of all new students and to all new eligible students by
 the Principal at the time of enrollment.
- 2. Unless the parent or secondary school student requests in writing that the District not release information, the student's name, address, and telephone number (if listed) shall be released to Armed Forces recruiters upon request. Subject to federal opt-out rights, directory information shall be made available to Armed Forces recruiters on the same basis as it is provided to the public.
- 3. Parents or eligible students who wish to review educational records may make a request on the appropriate form. Forms are available at the school and in the Central Office. Access shall be provided within a reasonable time frame, not to exceed forty-five (45) calendar days of District receipt of the request. Because, a shorter timeline is required in certain situations involving IDEA students, staff shall adhere to the District's special education procedures for responding to such requests. If circumstances effectively prevent a parent or eligible student from exercising inspection rights, copies of the request records shall be provided within the above stated time frame. Until any questions are resolved; no student record held by the District shall be discarded when the record is under an outstanding request to inspect or review.
- 4. School authorities shall make a documented effort to notify the parent or eligible student prior to complying with a court order or subpoena that directs the disclosure of information concerning the student unless a court order provides that the parent/eligible student is not to be notified. As noted in the District's annual FERPA notice, parent consent/notification is not required to release student records to another school district or post-secondary institution in which a student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled.
- 5. The District shall disclose personally identifiable student information to an organization designated to conduct a study on behalf of the District only when a written agreement has been established with the organization. Such disclosure does not require parent/eligible student consent.
- 6. The parent or eligible student must sign a request and consent form before a student's records are to be transferred to an agency or individual not authorized under law to receive them.
- 7. A log shall be maintained of student records requests and disclosures, including emergency disclosures in response to an actual, impending, or imminent articulable and significant health/safety threat. The log requirement does not apply to the following:
 - a. Disclosures made to parents or eligible students,
 - b. Records released pursuant to written consent,
 - c. Access by school officials and others having a legitimate educational interest under FERPA,
 - d. Disclosures of directory information, or
 - e. Disclosures of records made pursuant to a subpoena or court order where a court order or other law provides that the parent or student is not to be notified.
- 8. Upon request, the Superintendent/designee shall, arrange for a record amendment hearing in compliance with 702 KAR 1:140.

Notification of FERPA Rights

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and "eligible students" (students over 18 years of age or students who are attending a postsecondary institution) certain rights with respect to the student's educational records. They are:

- 1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within forty-five (45) days of the day the District receives a request for access.
 - Parents or eligible students should submit to the school Principal/designee a written request that Identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The Principal will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the record(s) may be inspected.
- 2. The right to inspect and review logs documenting disclosures of the student's education records.
 - Except for disclosure to school officials, disclosures related to some judicial orders or lawfully issued Subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and disclosure to the parent or eligible student, FERPA

Regulations require the District to record the disclosure.

3. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy or other rights.

Parents or eligible students may ask the District to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate, Misleading, or in violation of privacy or other rights. They should write the school Principal, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it is inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of their privacy or other rights. If the District decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the District will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and advise him/her of the right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.

4. The right to provide a written consent prior to disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.

Exceptions that permit disclosure without consent include:

- a. Disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A "school official" is a person employed by the District as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the School Board; a volunteer, or an outside person or company with whom the District has contracted to perform a special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent of student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing his/her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his/her professional responsibility to the District.
- b. Upon request, disclosure of education records without parent/eligible student notice or consent to officials of another school district or post-secondary institutions in which a student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled or to other entities authorized by law so long as the disclosures is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer.
- c. Disclosure of information to those whose knowledge of such information is necessary to respond to an actual, impending, or imminent articulable and significant health/safety threat.
- d. Disclosure to state and local educational authorities and accrediting organizations, subject to requirements of FERPA regulations.
- 5. The right to notify the District in writing to withhold information the Board has designated as directory information as listed in the annual directory information notice the District provides to parents/eligible students. To exercise this right, parents/eligible students shall notify the District by the deadline designated by the District.
- 6. The right to prohibit the disclosure of personally identifiable information concerning the student to recruiting representatives of the U. S. Armed Forces and its service academies, the Kentucky Air National Guard, and the Kentucky Army National Guard. Unless the parent or secondary school student requests in writing that the District not release Information, the student's name, address, and telephone number (if listed) shall be released to Armed Forces recruiters upon their request.
- 7. The right to file a complaint with the U. S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the District to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-4605

Student Fees (WCBE 09.15) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

BOARD APPROVAL REQUIRED

All student fees and charges shall be adopted by the Board, including any student activity fees or membership dues. Approved fees shall remain in place until modified or removed by Board resolution. Fees to be charged for items of personal attire, musical instruments or materials, other than materials, which become the property of the student, shall have prior approval of the Superintendent.

Fees may be charged for admission and transportation for cultural enrichment programs, field trips, or co-curricular activities provided the following conditions have been met:

- 1. The activity has received approval of the Superintendent as a qualifying activity.
- 2. Participation is voluntary and not a requirement of any course of study.
- 3. The program or trip is not an athletic activity.
- 4. The school has arranged to pay charges for those students who could not otherwise participate.

INABILITY TO PAY

No child shall be denied full participation in any educational program due to an inability to pay for necessary instructional resources.

WAIVER OF FEES

The Superintendent shall recommend and the Board shall approve a process to waive fees for students who qualify for free and reduced price meals. At the beginning of the school year or at the time of enrollment all students who qualify shall be given clear and prominent written notice of the fee waiver provisions. The written notice of the fee waiver process shall include a form that parents may use to request waiver of fees. Mandatory waiver of fees for qualifying students shall be accomplished in compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.

Student Welfare and Wellness (WCBE 09.2)

The health and safety of pupils shall be a priority consideration in all Board decisions.

The Board is committed to providing school environments that promote and protect student health, well being, and ability to learn by supporting healthy eating and physical activity.

Health Requirements and Services (WCBE 09.21)

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Superintendent shall develop procedures to insure District compliance with all health and safety governance requirements.

The protocols and guidelines for health procedures performed by health professionals and school personnel shall be accessible to school personnel. Policies and related procedures for these policies in the 09.2 section of this Manual, as referenced in the Health Services Reference Guide, are incorporated herein.

Required

All pupils shall undergo preventative health care examinations as required by Kentucky Administrative Regulation.

The Board shall adopt a program for continuous health supervision for all pupils, including screening tests related to growth and development, vision, and hearing.

Referral

Referral and appropriate follow-up of an abnormality noted by screening or teacher observation shall be recorded on school health records.

Emergency Care

School officials have emergency care procedures, a copy of which shall be on file in the Central Office.

Health Record

Each school shall initiate a cumulative health record for each pupil entering school. Such record shall be maintained throughout the pupil's attendance on forms prescribed by the Kentucky Administrative Regulation or maintained electronically in the student information system.

Health Care Examination (WCBE 09.211)

All pupils shall undergo preventative health care, dental, and vision examinations as required by Kentucky Administrative Regulation, which shall be reported on the state forms required by state regulation.

IMMUNIZATIONS

The immunization certificate form required by <u>704 KAR 004:020</u> shall be on file at the time of student's enrollment in school

Forms relating to exemptions from immunization requirements shall be available at each school.

Immunization certificates shall be kept current.

Contagious Diseases and Parasites (WCBE 09.213)

NOTIFICATION

A parent, legal guardian, or other person or agency responsible for a student shall notify the student's Principal if the student has any medical condition which is defined by the Cabinet for Health and Family Services in administrative regulation as threatening the safety of the student or others in the school. The notification shall be given as soon as the medical condition becomes known and upon each subsequent enrollment by the student in a school.

The Principal or designee shall notify the student's teachers in writing of the nature of the medical condition.

INFECTION CONTROL

If any student is known or suspected to have or be infected with a communicable disease or condition for which a reasonable probability for transmission exists in a school setting, the Superintendent may order the student excluded from school. The time period the student is excluded from school shall be in accordance with generally accepted medical standards which the Superintendent shall obtain from consultation with the student's physician, the local health officer, or the Kentucky Department for Public Health.

EPIDEMICS

In the event of an epidemic, the Board may close the schools.

SCHOOL TO REPORT

Local school authorities shall report immediately all known or suspected cases of communicable disease to the local health department. Diseases to be reported shall not include those considered confidential, such as HIV/AIDS, as set forth in Kentucky Administrative Regulation.

MEDICAL CONFIDENTIALITY

Unless otherwise required by law, signed parental consent designating District personnel to be informed of a student's medical condition shall be on file prior to informing identified District personnel. Medical records shall be accessible only to persons designated by the parents.

CLEANUP PROCEDURES

The Superintendent shall develop procedures to ensure adequate and proper cleanup details and measures to aid in the prevention of infection and communicability of contagious diseases.

Use of Physical Restraint (WCBE 09.2212)

Employees may use, within the scope of their employment, such physical restraint as may be reasonable and necessary to protect themselves, students, or others from physical injury; to obtain possession of a weapon or other dangerous object under the control of a student; or to protect property from serious harm.

If the ARC (Admissions and Release Committee) or Section 504 Team anticipates that a student may need to be restrained on a frequent basis, the District shall consider whether special restraint training is needed for one (1) or more of the employees who regularly work with the student.

Student Health and Safety (WCBE 09.22)

PRIORITY

Student health, welfare and safety shall receive priority consideration by the Board.

Rules and regulations on health and safety promulgated by the Kentucky Board of Education under Kentucky statute and by local and state boards of health relating to student safety and sanitary conditions shall be implemented in each school.

HEALTH SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

In keeping with applicable legal requirements, only licensed medical professionals or school employees who have been appropriately trained and authorized to do so shall provide health services to students.

Employees to whom health service responsibilities have been delegated must be approved in writing by the delegating physician or nurse. The approval form shall state the employee consents to perform the health service when the employee does not have the administration of health services in his/her contract or job description as a job responsibility, possesses sufficient training and skills, and has demonstrated competency to safely and effectively perform the health service. The approval form shall be maintained as required by law. Delegation of health service responsibilities shall be valid only for the current school year.

If the delegation involves administration of medication, the District will maintain proof that the employee has completed the required training provided by the Kentucky Department of Education (KDE).

Employees to whom health service responsibilities have been delegated shall notify their immediate supervisor by April 15 of each year if they are not willing to perform the service(s) during the next school year.

SAFETY PROCEDURES

All pupils shall receive annual instruction in school bus safety.

The Superintendent shall develop procedures designed to promote the safety of all students. Said procedures shall specify specific responsibilities for line positions having responsibility for student supervision.

SUICIDE PREVENTION

By September 1 of each school year, administrators shall provide suicide prevention awareness information to students in middle school grades and above, as provided by the Cabinet for Health and Family Services or a commercially developed suicide prevention training program.

Bicycle Use (WCBE 09.222)

SCHOOL TO DEVELOP RULES

Pupils shall be permitted to ride bicycles onto school grounds under rules developed by the Principal of each individual school.

Automobile Use (WCBE 09.223)

CONDITIONS FOR USE

With parental request and under conditions prescribed by the school Principal, high school pupils may be permitted to drive motor vehicles onto the school grounds. Vehicles shall be parked in designated areas on the school campus and are not to be visited or moved during the school day unless permission is given by the Principal.

PRIVILEGE MAY BE REVOKED

Driving on the school grounds is a privilege, which may be revoked if conditions are violated.

MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS

Middle school students shall not drive motor vehicles to school.

Emergency Medical Treatment (09.224) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

FIRST AID TO BE PROVIDED

First aid shall be provided to all pupils in case of an accident or sudden illness until the services of a health care professional become available.

FIRST-AID ROOM

A first-aid area with appropriate equipment, supplies and provisions for the child to recline shall be designated in each school. At least two (2) adult employees in each school, at least one (1) of whom shall be present at the school at all times during school hours, shall have completed and been certified in a standard first aid course that includes CPR for infants and children.

In accordance with \underline{KRS} 158.838, the District shall train and have available employees to administer glucagon or diazepam rectal gel to students as required by law.

INFORMATION NEEDED

A phone number at which a parent/guardian/designee can be reached and the name of the family physician shall be maintained at each school for all its pupils. A parent/guardian/designee will be notified in the event of an accident.

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

Each Principal shall develop a procedure for handling medical emergencies.

When an emergency arises and the student's parent/guardian/designee cannot be reached in a timely manner, the school will take action necessary to maintain the student's health, such as calling emergency medical personnel or taking the student to a health care facility.

Student Medication (WCBE 09.2241) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

Students may take medicine brought from home once a completed authorization form from the parent/guardian is on file

Medications dispensed to students by authorized school personnel who have completed training required by law shall be kept in the school following the guidelines set forth in procedure.

All medications must be administered and documented according to procedures developed by the Superintendent.

SELF-ADMINISTRATION

Provided the parent/guardian/designee provides a completed authorization form from a physician each year as required by law, which authorizes the student to carry and/or self-administer medication, a student under treatment for asthma or is at risk of having anaphylaxis shall be permitted to carry and/or self-administer medication consistent with the physicians authorization.

Student Insurance (WCBE 09.23)

AUTHORIZATION

The Board may approve a group accident insurance program and make it available to students. Other than distributing applications and receiving premiums to be forwarded to the insurance agent, teachers shall not solicit for the insurance program.

Student Activities (WCBE 09.3)

TO BE ENCOURAGED

Student activities of an educational nature shall be encouraged and maintained, based upon the needs and interests of pupils.

In schools operating under SBDM, the council shall determine selection of extracurricular activities, as well as academic qualifications, attendance requirements, evaluation procedures, and supervision for these programs.

CONTROL

All school-sponsored student activities shall be under the direction of the Principal and faculty of the school, except that a non-faculty coach or non-faculty assistant may accompany students on athletic trips as provided in statute.

The Principal may suspend a student's eligibility to participate in extracurricular and co-curricular activities, pending investigation of any allegation that the student has violated either the District/school behavior standards or the school council's criteria for participation.

Athletics (WCBE 09.31) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

GOVERNANCE

All interscholastic and intramural athletic competition shall be in compliance with the constitution, bylaws, and tournament rules of the Kentucky High School Athletic Association (KHSAA), all local regulations applied by the Principal or the Board, and Title IX requirements. As a condition to KHSAA membership, each member school and Superintendent shall annually submit a written certification of compliance with 20 USC Section 1681 (Title IX).

RESTRICTIONS

Practice sessions for elementary school athletic teams shall not exceed one-hundred and twenty (120) minutes.

Unless otherwise prohibited by KHSAA, a student enrolled below the ninth grade may, with parental consent, participate as a member of a high school athletic team under the following conditions:

A student enrolled below the ninth grade may, with parental consent, participate as a member of a high school athletic team under the following conditions:

- 1. The student shall not be eligible to represent any other district school in that sport for the remainder of the school year.
- The student shall not participate in high school try-outs or practices during the school instructional day, but shall be permitted to leave, without penalty, early when the high school team being represented plays an away game.

Safety (Athletics) (WCBE 09.311)

The Superintendent shall develop procedures to insure that the safety of the student shall be the first consideration in all athletic practices and events.

SUPERVISION

All athletic practices and events shall be under the direct supervision of a qualified employee of the Board.

TRAINING

All persons employed by the District as a coach for any interscholastic athletic activity or sport shall meet statutory training requirements. Training shall include how to recognize the symptoms of a concussion and how to seek proper medical treatment for a person suspected of having a concussion. In addition, at least one (1) person who has completed the required course shall be present at every high school athletic practice and competition.

Prior to assuming their duties, non-faculty coaches/coaching assistants shall successfully complete training provided by the District, which shall include, but not limited to, the following:

- 1. Information on the physical and emotional development of students of the age with whom the non-faculty coach and non-faculty assistant will be working;
- 2. The District's and school's discipline policies;
- 3. Procedures for dealing with discipline problems; and
- 4. Safety and first aid training.

Follow-up training shall be provided annually.

Emergency Action Plan

In keeping with rules established by Kentucky Board of Education (KBE) or the Kentucky High School Athletic Association (KHSAA), each school participating in interscholastic athletes shall develop and implement a venue-specific written emergency action plan and submit annual written verification of the plan to the designated agency. The school plan shall be reviewed, distributed, posted, and rehearsed annually as provided by statue.

Concussions

When an interscholastic coach, school athletic personnel, or contest official suspect that a student athlete has sustained a concussion during an athletic practice or competition, the student shall be removed from play and evaluated by a licensed health care provider as specified in statute, who shall determine if a concussion has occurred. The student may return to play if it is determined that no concussion has occurred.

A student athlete deemed to be concussed shall not be permitted to participate in any athletic practice or competition occurring on the day of the injury or unless a physician provides written clearance to participate in a practice or athletic competition held on a subsequent day.

MEDICAL EXAMINATION

Each student seeking eligibility to participate in any school athletic activity or sport must pass an annual medical examination performed and signed by a medical practitioner as required by law.

The required physical examination and parental authorization shall include acknowledgement of receipt of information on the nature and risk of concussion and head injury, including the continuance of playing after concussion or head injury.

Insurance (Athletics) (WCBE 09.312)

All students participating in interscholastic athletics must present evidence of accident insurance.

Eligibility (Athletics) (WCBE 09.313)

Determination of athletic eligibility shall be made in compliance with applicable administrative regulations and Kentucky High School Athletic Association requirements for both middle and high schools.

Student Organizations (WCBE 09.32)

The Board does not support or sponsor the establishment or operation of any secret or socially exclusive societies, fraternities, or sororities under District auspices.

School groups' affiliation with state and national organizations must be approved by the Board.

All school-sponsored student organizations shall be under the direction of a faculty advisor.

Student Organizations (Clubs) (WCBE 09.321)

Groups such as honor clubs, athletic clubs or other groups where membership is determined by scholarship, special curricular-related interests, or other such qualifications, may restrict membership to pupils who qualify according to bylaws of the organization approved by the Principal.

Membership and election of officers shall conform to accepted democratic processes.

Selection of Students (WCBE 09.323)

MEMBERSHIP

Membership in student organizations conducted on school premises or organized under the name of the school shall be open to all students. Membership and election of officers shall conform to accepted democratic processes.

Fund-Raising Activities (WCBE 09.33)

BOARD APPROVAL REQUIRED

All school-wide fund-raising activities must be approved by the Board. Requests must be channeled through the Principal and Superintendent. The Board will not sanction group participation in bingo as a means to raise funds.

Insofar as KRS 158.290 provides that no public school shall promote or engage in a school-wide fund-raising project without the prior approval of the local Board of Education, the Board will not approve participation in bingo as a fundraising activity by a school, school parent-teacher organizations or school parent-teacher associations.

The Board discourages participation in bingo fund-raising activities by Booster and other school-related organizations and will not knowingly accept into the Warren County School District or accounts controlled by the Warren County School District any funds or equipment or materials raised or purchased through bingo fund-raising activities.

PUPIL NOT COMPELLED

No student shall be compelled to participate in or meet any kind of quota in a fund-raising activity.

CONDUCT OF ACTIVITIES

All school-sponsored groups and any booster group wishing to be recognized by and/or affiliated with the District shall conduct fund-raising activities to benefit the entire group and shall not permit credit to be earned through fund-raising for an individual student in lieu of participation fees or related activity costs.

Student Publications (WCBE 09.34)

SPONSOR PROVIDED

A designated faculty sponsor shall be provided for all student publications.

PRIOR SUBMISSION

Materials intended for publication shall be submitted to the Principal or the Principal's designee for consideration and approval at a reasonable time prior to the intended publication date.

The Principal shall have the right to edit all materials for items which are substantially disruptive or which may cause harm to others.

APPEAL

A student or author may appeal in writing to the Superintendent the Principal's decision. During the appeal process, the material may not be published.

Social Events (WCBE 09.35)

Student social events may be approved by the Principal under the following conditions:

1. The door shall be controlled and admission limited to eligible students, guests, chaperones, and school personnel.

- 2. No one under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall be in attendance.
- 3. Adequate administrator and/or faculty supervision shall be provided.
- 4. A policeman shall be present for any event where it is anticipated that the nature of the crowd may pose conduct or safety problems.
- 5. In case of any disturbance which would jeopardize the safety of students present or threaten to deface or destroy school property, the Principal, Assistant Principal or chaperone shall immediately close the event and send pupils from the campus.
- 6. The Principal may impose additional regulations as needed.

School-Related Student Trips (WCBE 09.36)

SUPERINTENDENT TO APPROVE

The Superintendent shall have the authority to approve school-related trips, which fall into the following categories:

- 1. All regularly scheduled athletic events;
- 2. All athletic trips which are part of a tournament or play-off in which the school is a participant; and
- 3. All school-related trips made within a 150 mile radius of the school.

PRIOR APPROVAL

Prior approval of the Principal is required for each of the above trips. All overnight trips shall have the prior approval of the Superintendent or his designee.

PROHIBITION

Board owned vehicles shall not be used for recreational trips at any time.

BOARD REGULARLY INFORMED

The Board shall be regularly informed of any trip falling within these guidelines.

PRIOR APPROVAL OF BOARD

Any school-related trips not falling within the guidelines above and all out of state trips shall require prior Board approval.

Use of certificated common carrier service shall be authorized by the Board on a case-by-case basis, and the reasons to justify such use shall be cited in Board minutes.

MEDICATION

Administration of medication to students during field trips shall comply with applicable law, regulation and medication administration training developed by the Kentucky Department of Education.

When students will be travelling outside the state, the Superintendent's designee shall do the following:

- 1. Determine applicable legal requirements concerning delegation of student medication responsibilities in states through which students will be traveling; and
- 2. Assign staff to accompany students on the field trip to address student medication needs.

PARENTS' APPROVAL

Parents are to be informed of the nature of the trip, the approximate departure and return times, means of transportation, and any other relevant information. Parents must give written approval for students to participate in school-sponsored trips.

Vehicles and Supervision

All District-owned vehicles shall be driven by an adult duly qualified and licensed to operate the vehicle. Drivers of school vehicles and operation of District-owned passenger vehicles transporting students shall comply with requirements specified in applicable statutes and administrative regulations.

A certified or classified staff member must accompany students on all school-sponsored or school-endorsed trips. For athletic trips, a non-faculty coach or a non-faculty assistant may accompany students as provided in statute. Persons designated to accompany students shall be at least twenty-one (21) years old.

District students, their teachers, coaches, directors or leaders, and those serving as supervisors or chaperones may be transported by Board owned vehicles. Spectators, rooters, parents, and others not associated with the activity shall not be transported by Board owned vehicles.

INSURANCE

Only Board insured vehicles or appropriately certified common carriers shall be used for transporting students.

REIMBURSEMENT

The Superintendent shall establish a schedule of reimbursements for school groups using school buses for special trips.

Student Behavior (WCBE 09.4)

The Board requires high standards of personal conduct from all pupils and embraces the concept that each pupil shall respect the rights of others and abide by the administrative procedures of the school district and the laws of the community and state.

Pregnant and Married Students (WCBE 09.41)

Married and/or pregnant pupils shall be permitted the same rights and privileges as other pupils. Pregnant students may not participate in activities, which will endanger the student or fetus.

Care of School and Personal Property (WCBE 09.421)

Pupils Responsible

Pupils shall be held responsible for damage to school property.

SCHOOL PROPERTY

Any pupil, organization, or group of pupils participating in activities who destroys, defaces, damages or removes school property shall be subject to disciplinary action and liability for the cost of restoring the property.

In addition, when they have reasonable belief that a violation has taken place, principals shall immediately report to law enforcement officials when an act has occurred on school property or at a school-sponsored function that involves damage to school property. For the purposes of determining when to make this report, damage to school property shall refer to instances involving:

- 1. Intentional harm, and
- 2. Damage beyond minor loss or breakage, excluding normal wear and tear.

PERSONAL PROPERTY OF SCHOOL PERSONNEL

Any pupil, organization, or group of pupils who steals or willfully or wantonly destroys, defaces, or damages the personal property of school personnel on school property, off school property, or at school-sponsored activities shall be subject to suspension or expulsion from school.

STUDENTS' PROPERTY

Any pupil, organization, or group of pupils participating in activities who destroys, defaces, damages or steals the personal property of students shall be subject to disciplinary action.

PARENTS LIABLE

Parents shall be liable for property damage caused by their minor children.

Pupils in Building

No pupil shall be permitted in the school building except when under the direct supervision of the Principal, a faculty member, or a certified district employee designated by the Principal.

The Superintendent/designee shall be responsible for overall implementation and supervision of the Board's Code of Acceptable Behavior and Discipline, and each Principal shall be responsible for administration and implementation of the Code within each school. The Principal shall apply the Code uniformly and fairly to each student without partiality or discrimination.

The Principal of each school, or school council in schools with SBDM shall set school policy concerning the selection and implementation of appropriate discipline and classroom management techniques necessary to carry out the Code.

Bullying/Hazing (WCBE 09.422)

In order to effectively participate in the democratic process as adults, students must learn to respect the rights of others and to interact with them in a civil manner. Therefore, students are required to speak and behave in a civil manner toward students, staff and visitors to the schools.

ACTIONS NOT TOLERATED

The use of lewd, profane or vulgar language is prohibited. In addition, students shall not engage in behaviors such as hazing, bullying, menacing, taunting, intimidating, verbal or physical abuse of others, or other threatening behavior. This policy extends to any/all student language or behavior including, but not limited to, the use of electronic or online methods. Such behavior is disruptive of the educational process and interferes with the ability of other students to take advantage of the educational opportunities offered.

These provisions shall not be interpreted to prohibit civil exchange of opinions or debate protected under the state or federal constitutions where the opinion expressed does not otherwise materially or substantially disrupt the education process or intrude upon the rights of others.

Students who violate this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

BULLYING DEFINED

Bullying refers to any intentional act by a student or groups of students directed against another student to ridicule, humiliate, or intimidate the other student while on school groups, or at a school sponsored activity, which acts are repeated against the same student over time.

REPORTS

As provided in the District Code of Acceptable Behavior and Discipline, students that believe they are victims of bullying/hazing shall be provided with a process to enable them to report such incidents to District personnel for appropriate action. Students may report a bully by accessing WCPS website at the following address: http://goo.gl/FF9XVN.

Employees are expected to take reasonable and prudent action in situations involving student welfare and safety, including following District policy requirements for intervening and reporting to the Principal or to their immediate supervisor those situations that threaten, harass, or endanger the safety of students, other staff members, or visitors to the school or District. Such instances shall include, but are not limited to, bullying or hazing of students and harassment/discrimination of staff, students or visitors by any party.

Students who believe they have been a victim of bullying or who have observed other students being bullied shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, report it.

The District Code shall specify to whom reports of alleged instances of bullying or hazing shall be made. In serious instances of peer-to-peer bullying/hazing/harassment, employees must report to the alleged victim's Principal, as directed by Board policy 09.42811. The Principal/designee shall investigate and address alleged incidents of such misbehavior.

In certain cases, employees must do the following:

- 1. Report bullying and hazing to appropriate law enforcement authorities as required by policy 09.42811; and
- 2. Investigate and complete documentation as required by policy 09.42811 covering federally protected areas.

OTHER CLAIMS

When a complaint is received that does not appear to be covered by this policy, administrators shall review other policies that may govern the allegations, including but not limited to, 09.426 and/or 09.42811. Harassment/discrimination allegations shall be governed by Policy 09.42811.

Use, Receipt, Sale, Transfer, Possession or Being Under the Influence of Alcohol, Drugs and Other Prohibited Substances (WCBE 09.423)

Drugs, Alcohol and Other Prohibited Substances

No pupil shall purchase, receive, possess, attempt to possess, use, be under the influence of, sell, or transfer alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, controlled substances, mood altering substances (such as inhalants), prohibited drugs and substances, or drug paraphernalia and/or assist another pupil in the receipt, sale or transfer of them on school property, in any school vehicle, at any school-sponsored or sanctioned activity or event, or en route to or from school property or a school-sponsored or sanctioned activity or event.

In addition, students shall not possess prescription drugs for the purpose of sale or distribution.

DEFINITIONS

Controlled substance means any drug, narcotic, or controlled substance or immediate precursor listed in Chapter 218A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes or any other substance added by regulation under KRS 218A.010.

Prohibited drugs include, but are not limited to, any substance that an individual may not sell, possess, use, distribute or purchase under Federal or Kentucky law.

Prohibited substances include:

- 1. All prescription drugs obtained without authorization, and
- 2. All prohibited substances however taken or used, including but not limited to, inhaling, ingesting, and/or injecting. These include, but are not limited to, prescribed and over-the-counter drugs prohibited volatile

substances as defined in <u>KRS 217.900</u> or synthetic compounds/substances that are used or intended for use for an abusive and/or intoxicating purpose.

SIMULATED SUBSTANCES

No pupil shall purchase, receive, use, sell, possess, attempt to possess or transfer any counterfeit look-alike or simulated drug, narcotic, or controlled substance and/or assist another pupil in the receipt, sale, or transfer of any counterfeit, look-alike or simulated drug, narcotic, or controlled substance on school property, in any school vehicle, at any school-sponsored or sanctioned activity or event, or en route to or from school property or a school-sponsored or sanctioned activity or event, with the representation or the creation of an impression that the substance which is received, used, possessed, sold or transferred is a drug, narcotic, or controlled substance.

AUTHORIZED MEDICATION

Use of a drug, narcotic, or controlled substance authorized by and administered in accordance with a prescription from a physician or dentist shall not be considered in violation of this policy.

PENALTIES

Violation of this policy shall constitute reason for disciplinary action including but not limited to suspension or expulsion from school.

PENALTY FOR SALE OR TRANSMISSION

For sale or transmission of alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, controlled substances, counterfeit or look-alike narcotics, drugs or controlled substances and/or the assistance in the receipt, sale, or transfer of alcoholic beverages, drugs, narcotics, or controlled substances, drug paraphernalia, counterfeit, look-alike or simulated alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, or controlled substances, the student will immediately be suspended, and a recommendation for expulsion will be made.

PENALTY FOR POSSESSION

For a first offense for purchase, possession, attempts to possess, use, or being under the influence of alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, controlled substances or counterfeit, look-alike or simulated narcotics, drugs or other controlled substances, and or possession or use of drug paraphernalia, (where the violations does not result from the sale, receipt or transfer on school property, in any school vehicle, at any school-sponsored or sanctioned activity or event, or en route to or from school property or a school-sponsored or sanctioned activity or event) the student will receive immediate punishment which may include, but is not limited to, suspension of no more than ten (10) days at the discretion of the building principal based on the individual circumstances, and the Superintendent may recommend expulsion.

In the case of a first offense for purchase, possession, attempts to possess, use, or being under the influence of alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, controlled substances or counterfeit, look-alike or simulated narcotics, drugs or other controlled substances, and or possession or use of drug paraphernalia under the terms of the preceding paragraph, a recommendation for expulsion, at the discretion of the Superintendent, may be waived if the student and his/her parent(s) or guardian(s) agree to obtain, at their expense, an evaluation of the student's alcohol, drug, narcotic, or controlled substance use from a qualified chemical dependency counselor acceptable to the district and complete any and all counseling or other treatment recommended in the evaluation.

A second violation at any time during the student's enrollment in a District school will result in an immediate punishment and a recommendation for expulsion.

REPORTING

When they have reasonable belief that a violation has taken place, Principals shall immediately report to law enforcement officials when an act has occurred on school property or at a school-sponsored function that involves student possession of a controlled substance on school property in violation of the law.

PREVENTION PROGRAM

The Superintendent shall establish a comprehensive and on-going drug-free/alcohol-free prevention program for all students, which shall include notice to students and parents of the following:

- 1. The dangers of drug/alcohol/substance abuse in the schools;
- 2. The District's policies and related procedures on drug-free/alcohol-free schools;
- 3. The requirement for mandatory compliance with the District's established standards of conduct, including those that prohibit use of alcohol, drugs and other controlled and prohibited substances;
- 4. Information about available drug/alcohol counseling programs and available rehabilitation/student assistance programs; and
- 5. Penalties that may be imposed upon students for violations of this policy.

DRUG TESTING PROGRAM

The Superintendent shall establish a volunteer drug-testing program at the high school level for student athletes and PRIDE team members. Procedures shall be developed by the Superintendent.

Tobacco and Smoking: (WCBE 09.4232) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

Students shall not be permitted to use or possess any tobacco product, alternative nicotine product, or vapor product as defined in KRS 438.305 on property owned or operated by the Board, inside Board-owned vehicles, or during school-sponsored trips and activities. Students who violate these prohibitions while under the supervision of the school shall be subject to penalties set forth in the local code of acceptable behavior and discipline.

Weapons (WCBE 09.424)

APPLICATION

This policy applies to students.

FIREARMS, OTHER DANGEROUS OR DEADLY WEAPONS, DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS, DESTRUCTIVE DEVICES, AND BOOBY TRAPS

The carrying, bringing, using or possessing of any firearm, other dangerous or deadly weapon, dangerous instrument, destructive device or booby trap, or facsimile thereof (example: toy handgun) in any school building, on school property, in any school vehicle or at any school-sponsored activity or event is prohibited.

DEFINITIONS

Firearm: Any instruments, which will expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, including but not limited to any pistol, handgun, revolver, rifle or shotgun.

Other dangerous or deadly weapon: Any instrument, article or substance which under circumstances in which it is used, attempted to be used, threatened to be used or could be used is capable of causing death or bodily injury, including but not limited to any knife (other than an unopened ordinary small pocket knife with a blade of less than three (3) inches), a knife regardless of the blade length which can be opened by pressing a button and/or pressure on the handle and/or rapid wrist motion, air gun, spring gun, sling shot, bludgeon, billy club, nightstick, blackjack or artificial knuckles.

Dangerous instrument, destructive device or booby trap: Any instrument, article, or substance which under circumstances in which it is used, attempted to be used, threatened to be used or could be used is capable of causing death or bodily injury.

EXCEPTIONS

An exception may be made for students participating in an authorized event or curricular activity involving the use of prohibited items and for law enforcement officials.

ENFORCEMENT

When there is cause to believe that there are firearms, other dangerous or deadly weapons, dangerous instruments, destructive devices or booby trap devices in possession of students, searches and/or stationary or mobile metal detectors may be utilized.

PENALTIES

Violation of this policy shall require that the student be immediately suspended and a recommendation for expulsion made, with the exception of simple possession of an unopened ordinary small pocketknife with a blade of less than three (3) inches. Simple possession of an unopened ordinary small pocketknife with a blade of less than three (3) inches shall be dealt with as a Level I Offense as defined in the District Student Handbook.

Laser Pointers

Due to the risk of injury from misuse, students are prohibited from using laser pointers on school grounds.

Assault and Threats of Violence (WCBE 09.425)

For purposes of this policy, a "threat" shall refer to a communication made by any means, including, but not limited to, electronic and/or online methods.

PUPILS

Any pupil who threatens, assaults, batters or abuses another pupil shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, including suspension or expulsion.

SCHOOL PERSONNEL

Any pupil who threatens, assaults, batters or physically or verbally abuses a teacher or other school personnel shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action up to and including expulsion from school and/or legal action.

REMOVAL OF STUDENTS

School administrators, teachers, or other school personnel may immediately remove or cause to be removed threatening or violent students from a classroom setting or from the District's transportation system pending any further disciplinary action that may occur. Threatening or violent behavior shall include, but not be limited to:

- Verbal or written statements or gestures by students indicating intent to harm themselves, others or property.
- 2. Physical attack by students so as to intentionally inflict harm to themselves, others or property.

Removal of students from a bus shall be made in compliance with 702 KAR 005:080.

Each school shall designate the site(s) to which employees may remove students from a classroom setting and the employee(s) who will supervise the student at the site.

When teachers or other personnel remove a student, they shall complete and submit a form to document the removal and the causes as soon as practicable. The Principal shall review the removal as soon as possible to determine if further disciplinary action is warranted or if the student is to be returned to the classroom.

REPORT TO LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY

When they have reasonable belief that a violation has taken place, principals shall immediately report to law enforcement officials when an act has occurred on school property or at a school-sponsored function that involves assault resulting in serious physical injury, a sexual offense, kidnapping or each instance of assault involving the use of a weapon.

NOTIFICATION

As soon as the Superintendent/designee confirms that a serious threat has been confirmed, designated personnel shall attempt to notify staff members and/or students who have been threatened and parents of students who are the subject of a threat. Such notifications shall observe and comply with confidentiality requirements of applicable law including, but not limited to, state and federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) laws.

Any District employee assigned to work directly with, or to come in contact with, a student with a documented history of weapons violation and/or physical abuse of a school employee or of carrying a concealed weapon on school property or at a school function, shall be notified in writing of the student's history by the Principal or designee, guidance counselor or other school official who has knowledge of the student's behavior prior to the assignment or contact.

The notice shall describe the nature of the student's behavior.

Disrupting the Educational Process (WCBE 09.426)

Behavior that materially or substantially disrupts the educational process, whether on school property or at school-sponsored events and activities, shall not be tolerated and shall subject the offending pupil to appropriate disciplinary action. For purposes of this section, behavior which disrupts the educational process shall include, but not be limited to:

- 1. Conduct which threatens the health, safety, or welfare of others;
- 2. Conduct which may damage public or private property, including the property of students or staff;
- 3. Illegal activity;
- 4. Conduct that materially or substantially interferes with another student's access to educational opportunities or programs, including the ability to attend, participate in and benefit from instructional and extracurricular activities; or
- 5. Conduct that materially or substantially disrupts the delivery of instructional services or interferes with the orderly administration of the school and school-related activities or District operations.

OTHER CLAIMS

When a complaint is received that does not appear to be covered by this policy, administrators shall review other policies that may govern the allegations, including but not limited to, 09.422 and/or 09.42811, which address harassment/discrimination allegations.

Telecommunications & Computing Devices (WCBE 09.4261)

POSSESSION AND USE

While on school property or while attending school-sponsored or school-related activities, whether on or off school property, students shall be permitted to possess and use personal telecommunications and computing devices as defined by law and other related electronic devices, provided they observe the following conditions:

- 1. Devices shall not be used in a manner that disrupts the educational process, including, but not limited to, use that:
 - a. Poses a threat to academic integrity, such as cheating,
 - b. Violates confidentiality or privacy rights of another individual,
 - c. Is profane, indecent, or obscene,
 - d. Constitutes or promotes illegal activity or activity in violation of school rules, or
 - e. Constitutes or promotes sending, sharing, or possessing sexually explicit messages, photographs, or images using any electronic device.

These restrictions shall not be interpreted to prohibit material protected under the state or federal constitutions where such material does not otherwise materially or substantially disrupt the education process or intrude upon the rights of others

- 1. Unless an emergency situation exists that involves imminent physical danger or a certified employee authorizes the student to do otherwise, devices shall be turned on and operated only before and after the regular school day and during designated times by the school.
- 2. When students violate prohibitions of this policy, they shall be subject to disciplinary action, including losing the privilege of bringing the device onto school property and being reported to their parent/guardian. A violation also may result in a report being made to law enforcement. In addition, an administrator may confiscate the device.
- 3. Students are responsible for keeping up with devices they bring to school. The school and/or District shall not be responsible for loss, theft, or destruction of devices brought onto school property.
- 4. Students shall comply with any additional rules developed by the school concerning appropriate use of telecommunication, computing, and other electronic devices.
- 5. Students shall not utilize a telecommunication, computing, or similar electronic device in a manner that would violate the District's Acceptable Use policy or procedures or its Code of Acceptable Behavior and Discipline.

NOTICE OF POLICY

Notice of this policy and penalties for violating it shall be published annually in the District's Code of Acceptable Behavior and Discipline.

Student Dress and Appearance (WCBE Policy 09.427)

The wearing of any attire, cosmetics, presentation of extraordinary personal appearance, or any unsanitary body conditions, which in the judgment of the Principal significantly disrupts school work, interrupts scholastic endeavors, or threatens the health of other pupils is prohibited.

The school shall develop a student dress code for SBDM Council approval to be included in the school's student handbook.

Harassment/Discrimination (WCBE 09.42811)

DEFINITION

Harassment/Discrimination is unlawful behavior based on race, color, national origin, age, religion, sex or disability that is sufficiently severe, pervasive, or objectively offensive that it adversely affects a student's education or creates a hostile or abusive educational environment.

The provisions in this policy shall not be interpreted as applying to speech otherwise protected under the state or federal constitutions where the speech does not otherwise materially or substantially disrupt the educational process, as defined by policy 09.426, or where it does not violate provisions of policy 09.422.

Sexual harassment of employees and students is defined as any unwanted, personally offensive sexual attention, requests for sexual favors, or other illegal conduct of a sexual nature when:

- 1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment or academic status;
- 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment or academic decisions affecting that individual; or
- 3. Such conduct has the purpose or the effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or educational experience, or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment.

Acts of harassment/discrimination based on sex may be committed by persons of the same or the opposite sex.

PROHIBITION

Harassment/Discrimination is prohibited at all times on school property and off school grounds during school-sponsored activities. This prohibition also applies to visitors to the school who may come into contact with employees and students.

District staff shall provide for a prompt and equitable resolution of complaints concerning harassment/discrimination.

DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Students who engage in harassment/discrimination of an employee or of another student on the basis of any of the areas mentioned above shall be subject to disciplinary action including but not limited to suspension and expulsion.

GUIDELINES

Students who believe they or any other student, employee, or visitor is being or has been subjected to harassment/discrimination shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, report it.

In each school building, the Principal is the person responsible for receiving reports of harassment/discrimination at the building level. Otherwise, reports of harassment/discrimination may be made directly to the Superintendent. Additionally, if sexual discrimination or harassment is being alleged, reports may be made directly to the District Title IX Coordinator. Complaints of harassment/discrimination, whether verbal or written, shall lead to a documented investigation and a written report. Without a report being made to the Principal, Superintendent or Title IX/Equity Coordinator, the District shall not be deemed to have received a complaint of harassment/ discrimination.

Employees who believe prohibited behavior is occurring or has occurred shall notify the victim's Principal, who shall immediately forward the information to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall develop procedures providing for reporting any suspected harassment/discrimination, investigating allegations of harassment/discrimination and resolving any substantiated violation.

NOTIFICATIONS

Within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving a serious allegation of harassment/discrimination, District personnel shall attempt to notify parents of both student victims and students who have been accused of harassment/discrimination.

In circumstances also involving suspected child abuse, additional notification shall be required by law. (See Policy 09.227.)

In applicable cases, employees must report harassment/discrimination to appropriate law enforcement authorities in accordance with law.

PROHIBITED CONDUCT

Depending on the circumstances and facts of the situation, and within the definition of harassment/discrimination contained in this policy, examples of conduct and/or actions that could be considered a violation of this policy include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Any nicknames, slurs, stories, jokes, written materials or pictures that are lewd, vulgar, or profane and relate to any of the protected categories listed in the definition of harassment/discrimination contained in this policy;
- 2. Unwanted touching, sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and spreading sexual rumors;
- 3. Instances involving sexual violence;
- 4. Causing a student to believe that he or she must submit to unwelcome sexual conduct in order to participate in a school program or activity or that an educational decision will be based on whether or not the student submits to unwelcome sexual conduct;
- 5. Implied or overt threats of physical violence or acts of aggression or assault based on any of the protected categories;
- 6. Seeking to involve students with disabilities in antisocial, dangerous or criminal activity where the students, because of disability, are unable to comprehend fully or consent to the activity; and
- 7. Destroying or damaging an individual's property based on any of the protected categories.

Driver's License Revocation (WCBE 09.4294)

Students who are sixteen (16) or seventeen (17) years old who become academically deficient or deficient in attendance shall be reported to the Transportation Cabinet for driver's license, permit or driving privilege revocation.

ACADEMIC AND ATTENDANCE DEFICIENCIES

Academic and attendance deficiencies for students age sixteen (16) or seventeen (17) enrolled in regular, alternative, part-time, and special education programs shall be defined as follows:

- 1. They shall be deemed academically deficient if they have not received passing grades in at least four (4) courses, or the equivalent of four (4) courses, taken in the preceding semester.
- 2. They shall be deemed deficient in attendance when they drop out of school or accumulate nine (9) unexcused absences for the preceding semester. Suspensions shall be considered unexcused absences.

REINSTATEMENT OF DRIVING PRIVILEGE

Students whose driving permits are revoked, but later meet the statutory standards for reinstatement, must then apply to the Director of Pupil Personnel to have their standing confirmed. The District shall make the required report to the appropriate agency.

Student Disciplinary Processes (WCBE 09.43) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

SCHOOL-RELATED ACTIVITIES

The authority of the District in matters of student behavior is not limited to school buildings and grounds or to times when the pupil is on his/her way to or from school, but extends to any activity which is school-related or school-sponsored.

TREATMENT OF PUPILS

Student disciplinary measures should not be administered in a manner that is humiliating, degrading, or unduly severe or in a manner that would cause the pupil to lose status before his/her peer group. Teachers should guard against making remarks to other pupils concerning a student's shortcomings.

Unless an administrator or the Board acts under authority of <u>KRS 158.150</u>, no school, school administrator, teacher, or other school employee shall expel or punish a student based on juvenile court information received by the employee from any source. Administrators may act to protect staff and students when the student's conduct, as reflected by the information, indicates a substantial likelihood of an immediate and continuing threat of harm to students or staff. In cases where such actions are necessary, the following provisions shall apply:

- 1. Restrictions imposed on the student shall represent the least restrictive alternative available and appropriate to remedy the threat.
- 2. Supporting material shall be documented in and kept with the student's juvenile court record.
- 3. The student and/or parent/guardian may appeal actions taken to the Superintendent or to the Circuit Court with appropriate jurisdiction.

SERIOUS PROBLEMS

Serious disciplinary problems shall be promptly reported to the Principal and to the parent(s) of the student.

COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITY

Each school council shall select and implement discipline and classroom management techniques for the school.

In non-SBDM schools, the Principal shall make these decisions in compliance with Board policy.

CHILDREN AND YOUTH WITH DISABILITIES

Discipline for children and youth with disabilities shall observe, and be in conformity with, federal and state procedures and guidelines.

Due Process (WCBE 09.431)

RIGHT TO DUE PROCESS

Before being punished at the school level with suspension for violation of school regulations, a pupil shall have the right of the following due process procedures.

- 1. The pupil shall be given oral or written notice of the charge(s) against him.
- 2. If the pupil denies the charge(s), he shall be given an explanation of the evidence against him.
- 3. The pupil shall be given an opportunity to present his own version of the facts concerning the charge(s).

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

In cases, which involve students with disabilities, procedures mandated by federal and state law shall be followed.

Detention (WCBE 09.432)

PRINCIPAL TO ESTABLISH

The Principal or his designee may establish a detention hall as an alternative disciplinary method.

NOTICE TO PARENTS

A pupil's parent/guardian shall be notified prior to the detention so that transportation may be arranged by the parent.

Suspension (WCBE 09.434)

WHO MAY SUSPEND

In accordance with KRS 158.150, the Principal or assistant Principal may suspend a pupil up to a maximum of ten (10) days per incident.

The Superintendent may suspend a pupil up to a maximum of ten (10) days per incident.

LENGTH OF SUSPENSION

A pupil may not be suspended for more than a total of ten (10) days per incident.

Suspension of primary school students shall be considered only in exceptional cases where there are safety issues for the child or others, as determined by the Superintendent/designee.

PRIOR DUE PROCESS REQUIRED

A pupil shall not be suspended until due process procedures have been provided as described in KRS (09.431), unless immediate suspension is essential to protect persons or property or to avoid disruption of the educational process. If the Superintendent lengthens the period of suspension imposed by the Principal, additional due process shall be provided.

IMMINENT DANGER

In such cases, due process shall follow the suspension as soon as practicable, but no later than three (3) school days after the suspension.

WRITTEN REPORT REQUIRED

The Principal or assistant Principal shall report any suspension in writing immediately to the Superintendent and to the parent of the pupil being suspended. The written report shall include the reason for suspension, the length of time of the suspension, and the conditions for reinstatement. One such condition shall be that one or both parents/guardians will accompany the student for a conference with school officials prior to the student's reentry.

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

In cases, which involve students with disabilities, the procedures mandated by federal and state law for students with disabilities shall be followed.

Alternative Education (WCBE 09.4341)

ASSIGNMENT

For conduct that disrupts the educational process, a student may be assigned to the Alternative Education program by the Principal or his/her designee. The duration of assignment shall be fixed by the Principal or his/her designee.

NOTIFICATION

The Principal or his/her designee shall notify the parents by letter of their child's assignment to the Alternative Education program.

The letter shall include length and reason for assignment, expected behavior of the student, and notification that assignment may be extended or shortened depending upon the attitude and cooperation of the student.

SUPERVISION

The student shall remain in the regular school setting but shall be isolated from the regular school schedule. Opportunities shall be provided for the student to continue regular schoolwork under the supervision of the school staff, and counseling services shall be provided to address school-related problems.

Expulsion (WCBE 09.435)

BOARD MAY EXPEL

The Board may expel any pupil from the regular school setting for misconduct as defined by law or for violation of rules, regulations and policies of the District and Board. Provision of educational services will be required unless the Board determines, on the record and supported by clear and convincing evidence, that the expelled student posed a threat to the safety of other students or school staff and could not be placed in a state-funded agency program.

Behavior that may be determined to pose a threat shall include, but not be limited to, the physical assault, battery, or abuse of others; the threat of physical force; being under the influence of drugs or alcohol; the use, possession, sale, or transfer of drug or alcohol; the carrying, possessing, or transfer of weapons or dangerous instruments; and any other behavior that may endanger the safety of others.

The Superintendent shall present to the Board for its approval options for providing educational services to expelled students.

HEARING AND RECORDS REQUIRED

A pupil shall not be expelled until a hearing is held before the Board. The special education and disciplinary records of IDEA eliqible students shall be sent to the Board for review before the decision is made to expel.

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

In cases, which involve students with disabilities, procedures mandated by federal and state law for students with disabilities shall be followed. Students with disabilities who are eligible for services under federal law may be expelled for behavior unrelated to their disabilities, as long as legally required procedural safeguards are followed. Educational services must continue for students eligible under IDEA who are expelled.

OTHER PROGRAMS

If a student who is currently under expulsion from a public school is considered for admission to either the Day Treatment Program or the educational program at Rivendell, the Superintendent or designee shall review the circumstances of the expulsion and may approve enrollment on an individual basis.

BOARD DECISION FINAL

The Board's decision shall be final.

CONTENT OF RECORDS

If any student who has been expelled for homicide, assault, or an offense in violation of Kentucky law or school regulations relating to weapons, alcohol, or drugs requests a transfer of the student's records, those records shall reflect the charges and the final disposition of the expulsion proceedings.

TRANSFER OF RECORDS

If a student who is subject to an expulsion proceeding for homicide, assault, or an offense in violation of Kentucky law or school regulations relating to weapons, alcohol or drugs requests a transfer of student records, the records shall not be transferred until the expulsion proceedings have been terminated and shall reflect the charges and final disposition of the expulsion proceedings.

REPORTING OF EXPULSION BY PARENT. GUARDIAN. OR OTHER PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR STUDENT

If a student has been adjudicated guilty, convicted outside of Kentucky of homicide, assault, or an offense in violation of Kentucky law or school regulations relating to weapons, alcohol or drugs, or has been expelled from school in or outside of Kentucky for homicide, assault, or an offense in violation of state law or school regulations relating to weapons, alcohol or drugs, prior to the student's admission to school, the parent, guardian, or other person or agency responsible for the student shall provide the school a sworn statement or affirmation that the student has been adjudicated guilty of or expelled from attendance at a school in this state or another state for homicide, assault, or an offense in violation of state law or school regulations relating to weapons, alcohol or drugs.

EXPULSION BY BOARD

A student carrying, bringing, using, or possessing any firearm or other deadly weapon or booby trap device, as defined in the Gun-Free Schools Act of 1994, in any school building, on school grounds, in any school vehicle or at any school-sponsored activity will be reported to the criminal justice or juvenile authorities, and shall be expelled for not less than one (1) calendar year.

To comply with existing requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) regarding discipline of students with disabilities, the Board will modify the expulsion requirements on a case-by-case basis for IDEA-eligible students.

The Board's decision shall be final.

Retaliation Prohibited

No one shall retaliate against an employee or student because s/he submits a grievance, assists or participates in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing regarding the charge of harassment/discrimination of an individual or because s/he has opposed language or conduct that violates this policy.

Upon the resolution of allegations, the Superintendent shall take steps to protect employees and students against retaliation.

CONFIDENTIALITY

District employees involved in the investigation of complaints shall respect, as much as possible, the privacy and anonymity of both victims and persons accused of violations.

APPEAL

Upon the completion of the investigation and correction of the conditions leading to the harassment or discrimination any party may appeal in writing any part of the findings and corrective action to the Superintendent.

Failure by employees to report, notify, and/or initiate an investigation of alleged harassment/discrimination as required by this policy, or to take corrective actions shall be cause for disciplinary action.

FALSE COMPLAINTS

Deliberately false or malicious complaints of harassment/discrimination may result in disciplinary action taken against the complainant.

OTHER CLAIMS

When a complaint is received that does not appear to be covered by this policy, administrators shall review other policies that may govern the allegations, including but not limited to, 09.422 and/or 09.426.

Search and Seizure (WCBE 09.436)

REASONABLE SUSPICION

No pupil's outer clothing, pockets, or his or her personal effects (e.g., handbags, backpacks, etc.) shall be searched by authorized school personnel unless there are reasonable grounds to believe the search will reveal evidence that the pupil has violated or is violating either a school rule or the law. Search of a pupil's person shall be conducted only with the express authority of the Principal/designee.

AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL

Searches of a pupil's person or his or her personal effects shall only be conducted by a certified person directly responsible for the conduct of the pupil or the Principal/designee of the school, which the student attends. However, when an immediate threat to the health or safety of others occurs off site with no certified employee reasonably available, a non-certified person (i.e., bus driver or coach/sponsor) that is responsible for the students is authorized to conduct the search of a student or his/her personal effects. Examples of immediate threats would include reasonable suspicion of the presence of illegal drugs or a weapon.

WITNESS/PERSONAL SEARCHES

When a pat-down search of pupil's person is conducted, the person conducting the search shall have a witness. In addition, no search of a pupil shall be conducted in the presence of other students.

These restrictions shall not apply to situations involving an imminent threat to students or staff where immediate action is required to prevent harm to health and safety.

STRIP SEARCHES

No strip searches of students shall be permitted.

Use of Video Cameras

Video cameras may be installed in areas used in the instruction and transportation programs to record student behavior. Evidence of student misbehavior recorded on video may be used to discipline students.

CANINE SEARCH

The use of a canine search for (contraband (prohibited items) may be scheduled at the middle and high school level by the Superintendent with the Bowling Green City Police or the Kentucky State Police.

FAILURE TO COOPERATE

Students who fail to cooperate with school authorities when requested to shall be subject to other disciplinary action.

REGULAR INSPECTION

School property, such as lockers, desks, and network systems, technology resources and accounts owned or supplied by the District are jointly held by the school and the pupil. School authorities have the right to conduct general inspection of all such property and resources on a regular basis.

During these inspections, items, which are school property, such as overdue library books, may be collected. Students should not expect privacy for items and information left in such locations. A single desk, locker or a technology resource/account may be searched if reasonable grounds exist to believe that evidence of a violation of the law or a school rule is contained therein.

ILLEGAL ITEMS

Illegal items (e.g., weapons, drugs, etc.) or other possessions reasonably determined by proper school authorities to be a threat to the pupil's safety or to others' safety and security may be seized by school officials.

OTHER DISRUPTIVE ITEMS

Items which may be used to disrupt or interfere with the educational process may be temporarily removed from the pupil's possession by a staff member. Such items may be returned to the pupil by the staff member or through the Principal's office.

DISPOSITION OF ITEMS

All items, which have been seized, shall be turned over to the proper authorities or returned to the true owner.

Police Officers in the School (WCBE 09.4361)

School officials shall cooperate with law enforcement agencies in cases involving students (i.e., serving of subpoenas, juvenile petitions or warrants, or taking students into custody.) As soon as possible, officials shall endeavor to notify the parents of students who are arrested.

When students are arrested at school, the Principal/designee shall make a written record of the identity of the officer making the arrest, the nature of the offense charged, the name of the issuing authority of any arrest warrant, and the place of custody.

Crimes Off School Property

In the interest of the student's welfare, the following requirements shall be followed when police officers ask to question or remove a student from the school whom they suspect of committing a crime off school property:

- 1. Parents/guardians shall be notified by school officials as soon as possible.
- 2. If the parent(s) come to the school or consent to permit the officer(s) to interview the student, a private place for the interview shall be provided.
- 3. If the parent(s) cannot come to the school and do not consent to the interview, the police should be advised to either bring a warrant, court order, or juvenile petition or arrange to interview the student off school grounds.
- 4. If the student is an alleged victim of abuse or neglect by a parent(s), school officials shall follow directions provided by the investigating officer or Cabinet for Families and Children representative as to whether to contact a parent.

Crimes On School Property

Except in cases of emergencies involving threats to health and safety as determined by the Superintendent, when the District calls law enforcement officials to question students concerning crimes committed on school property, the Principal shall make an effort to notify their parent(s).

Criminal Violations/Student Discipline Code (WCBE 09.438) This policy is being reviewed and/or revised by the WCPS Board of Education

DEVELOPMENT

In accordance with $\underline{\text{KRS } 158.148}$ and $\underline{\text{704 } \text{KAR } 007:050}$, the Board shall develop a student discipline code which shall be referenced in all school handbooks and provided to school employees, parents, legal guardians, or other persons exercising custodial control or supervision. As required by $\underline{\text{KRS } 158.148}$, a process shall be developed to provide information to those parties and to train employees.

The code shall establish standards of acceptable student behavior and discipline and may include District-wide standards of behavior for students who participate in extracurricular and co-curricular activities.

The code also shall include a process addressing how students can report code violations to District personnel for appropriate action.

DISTRIBUTION

Once reviewed and approved, the student discipline code shall be distributed to students and parents in the District, including those students who enroll during the school year.

REVIEW

The Board shall update the student discipline code at least every two (2) years.

REPORTING OF DATA

As directed by the Kentucky Department of Education (KDE), the District shall report to the Center for School Safety when a student has been disciplined by the school for a serious incident, as defined by KDE; charged criminally for conduct constituting a violation under <u>KRS Chapter 508</u>; or charged criminally under <u>KRS 525.070</u> or <u>KRS 525.080</u> in relation to a serious incident.

Data collected on an individual student committing a reportable incident shall be placed in the student's disciplinary record.

Zero Tolerance and Structure for Responses to Student Misconduct (Procedures)

The Warren County School District has adopted a discipline process of zero tolerance for acts of racism and weapons, drugs, alcohol and violence. Zero tolerance means both limit setting and enforcement of that limit. A discipline violation shall cause an automatic office referral which result in demonstrated consequences for the student misbehavior. All threats of violence will be taken seriously. Following investigation by school staff, an immediate suspension may occur. In addition, a police report may be made if circumstances warrant.

The following are examples of student misconduct and responses thereto; however, in a document of this nature it is impossible to list all examples. Therefore, student misconduct and responses thereto are not limited to only those examples and responses, which are listed herein. Responses to violations of the district's drug and alcohol policy are described in this manual. Also, responses to violations of the district's weapons policy are described in (WCBE 09.4; 09.424; 09.426; 09.426; 09.42811; 09.43; 09.431; 09.432; 09.4341; 09.438).

Structure for Responses To Student Misconduct:

Responses to student misconduct may be modified for students with disabilities in accordance with the IEP or 504 plan, using the appropriate committee and all due process procedures.

Level I:

Minor misbehavior on the part of the student that impedes orderly classroom procedures or interferes with the orderly operation of the school. These misbehaviors can usually be handled by an individual staff member but sometimes require the intervention of other school support personnel.

- (1) Examples:
 - a. Classroom disturbance;
 - b. Classroom tardiness:
 - c. Minor instances of disrespect;
 - d. Non-defiant failure to complete assignments or carry out directions;
 - e. Copying other student's work;
 - f. Gambling;
 - g. Harassment and/or discrimination;
 - h. Non-compliance with dress code;
- (2) Disciplinary Response Procedures:
 - a. There is immediate intervention by the staff member who is supervising the student or who observes the misbehavior;
 - Repeated misbehavior requires a parent/teacher conference; conference with the counselor and/or administrator;
 - A proper and accurate record of the offenses and disciplinary action will be maintained by the staff member.
- (3) Response Options Examples:
 - a. Verbal reprimands;
 - b. Behavioral contract:
 - c. Counseling;
 - d. Withdrawal of privileges;
 - e. Strict supervised study;
 - f. Peer Mediation;
 - q. Social Skills Instruction;
 - h. Demerits;
 - i. Detention;
 - j. Conference with parents;
 - k. Student Assistance Program;
 - I. In-school suspension;

Level II:

Misbehavior whose frequency or seriousness tends to disrupt the learning climate of the school. These infractions, which may result from the continuation of Level I behaviors, require the intervention of personnel on the administrative level because the execution of Level I disciplinary options has failed to correct the situation. Also included in this level are misbehaviors which do not represent a direct threat to the health and safety of others but whose educational consequences are serious enough to require corrective action on the part of administrative personnel.

(1) Examples:

- a. Continuation of modified Level I misbehavior;
- b. School tardiness;
- c. Truancy;
- d. Using forged notes or excuses;
- e. Disruptive classroom behavior;
- f. Cutting class;
- g. Destroying property and/or destroying files or deleting work from files or machines;
- h. Displaying or distributing items which have a disruptive effect on the school environment;
- i. Possession of a paging device, including cell phones;
- j. Harassment and/or discrimination;

(2) Disciplinary Response Procedures:

- a. The student is referred to the administrator for appropriate disciplinary action;
- b. The administrator meets with the student and/or teacher and affects the most appropriate response;
- c. The teacher is informed of the administrator's action;
- d. The administrator may confer with the parent about the student misconduct;
- e. A proper and accurate record of the offense and disciplinary action is maintained by the administrator;

(3) Response Options Examples:

- a. Teacher/schedule change;
- b. Modified day;
- c. Behavior contracts and plans;
- d. Social probation;
- e. Peer mediation;
- f. Referral to outside agency;
- g. In-house Alternate Learning Center/Alternate Behavior Class;
- h. Counseling;
- i. Student Assistance Program;
- j. Detention;
- k. Suspension;

Level III:

Acts directed against persons or property but whose consequences do not seriously endanger the health or safety of others in the school. These acts may result from continuation of Levels I and II behaviors and/or might be considered criminal but most frequently can be handled by the disciplinary mechanism in the school. Corrective measures, which the school should undertake, however, depend on the extent of the school's resources for remediation of the situation in the best interest of all students.

(1) Examples:

- a. Fighting;
- b. Vandalism (depending on severity);
- c. Stealing;
- d. Threats to others:
- e. Sexual Harassment;
- f. Continuation of unmodified Levels I and II behaviors;
- g. Harassment and/or discrimination;

- (2) Disciplinary Response Procedures:
 - a. The administrator initiates disciplinary action by investigating the infraction and conferring with staff on the extent of the consequences;
 - b. The administrator meets with the student and confers with the parent about the student's misconduct and the resulting disciplinary action;
 - A proper and accurate record of offenses and disciplinary actions is maintained by the administrator;
- (3) Response Options Examples:
 - a. Temporary removal from class;
 - b. Alternative School Placement;
 - c. Suspension;
 - d. Counseling;
 - e. In-house Alternate School/Alternate; Behavior Class;
 - f. Expulsion;

Level IV:

Acts which result in violence to another's person or property or which pose a direct threat to the orderly operation of schools and/or safety of others in the school. These acts are so serious, that they always require administrative action, which result in the immediate removal of the student from school, the intervention of law enforcement authorities and action by the Board of Education.

- (1) Examples:
 - a. Continuation of Unmodified Levels I, II and III behaviors;
 - b. Extortion:
 - c. Bomb threats and other threats of harm against schools, school buses, school employees or school function. These offenses are felonies;
 - d. Possession or use of firearms, other dangerous or deadly weapons, dangerous instruments, destructive devices or booby traps or facsimiles thereof (Example: toy gun);
 - e. Assault/battery;
 - f. Vandalism (depending on severity);
 - q. Theft/possession/sale of stolen property;
 - h. Arson
 - Possession, use, sale, receipt or transfer of, and/or assistance in the sale, receipt or transfer of alcoholic beverages, narcotics, drugs, controlled substances, mood altering substances (such as an inhalant) or drug paraphernalia or counterfeit, look-alike or simulated narcotics, drugs, controlled substances or mood altering substances;
 - j. Non emergency use of or tampering with fire alarm system;
 - k. Abusive language directed toward school personnel;
 - . Harassment and/or discrimination;
- (2) Disciplinary Response Procedures:
 - a. The administrator verifies the offense;
 - b. Confers with the staff involved; and
 - c. Meets with student and/or parents, and other appropriate persons.
- (3) Response Options Examples:
 - a. Suspension;
 - b. An alternative school;
 - c. Expulsion.